





MORGAN AND MORECAMBE OFFSHORE WIND FARMS: TRANSMISSION ASSETS

Environmental Statement

Volume 3, Annex 4.3: Intertidal birds technical report

September 2024 Rev: ES Issue

MOR001-FLO-CON-ENV-RPT-0088 MRCNS-J3303-RPS-10103

PINS Reference: EN020028 APFP Regulations: 5(2)(a) Document reference: F3.4.3







Document status					
Version	Purpose of document	Approved by	Date	Approved by	Date
ES	For issue	AS	September 2024	IM	September 2024

The report has been prepared for the exclusive use and benefit of the Applicants and solely for the purpose for which it is provided. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by RPS Group Plc, any of its subsidiaries, or a related entity (collectively 'RPS') no part of this report should be reproduced, distributed or communicated to any third party. RPS does not accept any liability if this report is used for an alternative purpose from which it is intended, nor to any third party in respect of this report. The report does not account for any changes relating to the subject matter of the report, or any legislative or regulatory changes that have occurred since the report was produced and that may affect the report.

The report has been prepared using the information provided to RPS by its client, or others on behalf of its client. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RPS shall not be liable for any loss or damage suffered by the client arising from fraud, misrepresentation, withholding of information material relevant to the report or required by RPS, or other default relating to such information, whether on the client's part or that of the other information sources, unless such fraud, misrepresentation, withholding or such other default is evident to RPS without further enquiry. It is expressly stated that no independent verification of any documents or information supplied by the client or others on behalf of the client has been made. The report shall be used for general information only.

Prej	pare	d by:
------	------	-------

RPS

Prepared for:

Morgan Offshore Wind Limited, Morecambe Offshore Windfarm Ltd







Contents

1	INTE	ERTIDAL	L BIRDS TECHNICAL REPORT	1
	1.1	Introdu	uction	1
	1.2	Metho	odology	1
		1.2.1	Study and survey areas	1
		1.2.2	Relevant legislation and guidance	9
		1.2.3	Consultation	10
		1.2.4	Approach to establishing the baseline	10
		1.2.5	Desk-based study data sources	10
		1.2.6	Designated sites	15
		1.2.7	Conservation status	15
	1.3	Desk-l	based study – baseline characterisation	15
		1.3.1	Designated sites with intertidal habitats	15
		1.3.2	WeBS core count five-year summary	30
		1.3.3	Summary of Fylde Bird club data species records	35
		1.3.4	Fylde-sand extraction-Golder Associates UK Ltd	46
		1.3.5	Morecambe Offshore Windfarm-Fylde export cable route	46
	1.4	Site-sp	pecific surveys – baseline characterisation	47
		1.4.1	Coastal survey area	47
		1.4.2	Estuarine survey area	47
		1.4.3	Survey methodology	48
		1.4.4	Mapping count data	50
		1.4.5	Site-specific survey results	52
		1.4.6	Limitations	194
	1.5	Summ	nary	194
	1.6	Refere	ences	

Tables

Table 1.1:	Summary of key sources for the desk-based study	11
Table 1.2:	Ornithological features of SPAs within or partly within the study area	16
Table 1.3:	Designated features of Ramsar sites within or partly within the study area	21
Table 1.4:	SSSIs with intertidal habitats or potential connectivity within the study area	24
Table 1.5:	NNRs within the study area with intertidal habitat	28
Table 1.6:	LNRs within the study area	29
Table 1.7:	BHSs within, or partly within, the study area	30
Table 1.8:	Summary of WeBS core count data for sectors overlapping with the intertidal	
	survey areas for years 2017/18 through to 2021/22	33
Table 1.9:	Fylde Bird Club ornithological individual species records (2018/19 through to	
	2022/23) in tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area and estuarine survey	
	area	42
Table 1.10:	Summary of site-specific surveys	47
Table 1.11:	Perceived effect of disturbance on abundance and behaviour of birds	49
Table 1.12:	Table showing biological season of taxonomic groups recorded within the survey	
	area	51
Table 1.13:	Annual peak abundance of waterbirds recorded in the coastal survey area during	
	the site-specific surveys (September 2021 to August 2023)	73
Table 1.14:	Peak abundance of waterbirds recorded in the estuarine survey area during the	
	site-specific surveys (October 2022 to March 2023)	142
Table 1.15:	The monthly peak data for the coastal intertidal survey (including the highest of	
	either the diurnal and nocturnal peaks)	199







-

Figures

Figure 1.1:	Intertidal birds study area - Internationally designated sites	3
Figure 1.2:	Intertidal birds study area - Nationally designated sites	4
Figure 1.3:	Intertidal birds study area - Locally designated sites	5
Figure 1.4:	Coastal and estuarine survey areas	6
Figure 1.5:	Coastal survey area	7
Figure 1.6:	Estuarine survey area	8
Figure 1.7:	WeBS core count sectors that overlap with the coastal and estuarine survey areas	14
Figure 1.8:	Distribution of common scoter during the non-breeding season	76
Figure 1.9:	Distribution of common scoter during the breeding season	77
Figure 1.10:	Distribution of oystercatcher in winter	78
Figure 1.11:	Distribution of oystercatcher during passage	79
Figure 1.12:	Distribution of grey plover in winter	80
Figure 1.13:	Distribution of grey plover during passage	81
Figure 1.14:	Distribution of ringed plover in winter	82
Figure 1.15:	Distribution of ringed plover during passage	83
Figure 1.16:	Distribution of curlew in winter	84
Figure 1.17:	Distribution of curlew during passage	85
Figure 1.18:	Distribution of bar-tailed godwit in winter	86
Figure 1.19:	Distribution of bar-tailed godwit during passage	87
Figure 1.20:	Distribution of turnstone in winter	88
Figure 1.21:	Distribution of turnstone during passage	89
Figure 1.22:	Distribution of knot in winter	90
Figure 1.23:	Distribution of knot during passage	91
Figure 1.24:	Distribution of sanderling in winter	92
Figure 1.25:	Distribution of sanderling during passage	93
Figure 1.26:	Distribution of dunlin in winter	94
Figure 1.27:	Distribution of dunlin during passage	95
Figure 1.28:	Distribution of redshank in winter	96
Figure 1.29:	Distribution of redshank during passage	97
Figure 1.30:	Distribution of black-headed gull during the non-breeding season	98
Figure 1.31:	Distribution of black-headed gull during the breeding season	99
Figure 1.32:	Distribution of common gull during the non-breeding season	100
Figure 1.33:	Distribution of common gull during the breeding season	101
Figure 1.34:	Distribution of great black-backed gull during the non-breeding season	102
Figure 1.35:	Distribution of great black-backed gull during the breeding season	103
Figure 1.36:	Distribution of herring gull during the non-breeding season	104
Figure 1.37:	Distribution of herring aull during the breeding season	105
Figure 1.38:	Distribution of lesser black-backed gull during the non-breeding season	106
Figure 1.39:	Distribution of lesser black-backed gull during the breeding season	107
Figure 1.40:	Distribution of sandwich tern during the non-breeding season	108
Figure 1.41:	Distribution of sandwich tern during the breeding season	109
Figure 1.42:	Distribution of common tern during the non-breeding season	
Figure 1.43:	Distribution of common tern during the breeding season	
Figure 1.44	Distribution of red-throated diver during the non-breeding season	
Figure 1.45:	Distribution of red-throated diver during the breeding season	
Figure 1.46	Distribution of cormorant during the non-breeding season	
Figure 1.47	Distribution of cormorant during the breeding season	
Figure 1.48:	Distribution of Canada goose during the non-breeding season	







Figure 1.49: Distrik	bution of Canada goose during the breeding season	145
Figure 1.50: Distrik	bution of greylag goose during the non-breeding season	146
Figure 1.51: Distrik	bution of greylag goose during the breeding season	147
Figure 1.52: Distrik	bution of whooper swan during the non-breeding season	148
Figure 1.53: Distrik	bution of shelduck during the non-breeding season	149
Figure 1.54: Distrib	bution of shelduck during the breeding season	150
Figure 1.55: Distrib	bution of wigeon during the non-breeding season	151
Figure 1.56: Distrib	bution of wigeon during the breeding season	152
Figure 1.57: Distrik	bution of mallard during the non-breeding season	153
Figure 1.58: Distrik	bution of mallard during the breeding season	154
Figure 1.59: Distrik	bution of teal during the non-breeding season	155
Figure 1.60: Distrik	bution of teal during the breeding season	156
Figure 1.61: Distrik	bution of goosander during the non-breeding season	157
Figure 1.62: Distrik	bution of goosander during the breeding season	158
Figure 1.63: Distrik	bution of oystercatcher during winter	159
Figure 1.64: Distrik	bution of oystercatcher during passage	160
Figure 1.65: Distrik	bution of lapwing during winter	161
Figure 1.66: Distrik	bution of lapwing during passage	162
Figure 1.67: Distrik	bution of grey plover during winter	163
Figure 1.68: Distrik	bution of curlew during winter	164
Figure 1.69: Distrik	bution of curlew during passage	165
Figure 1.70: Distrik	bution of black-tailed godwit during winter	166
Figure 1.71: Distrik	bution of dunlin during winter	167
Figure 1.72: Distrik	bution of dunlin during passage	168
Figure 1.73: Distrik	bution of snipe during winter	169
Figure 1.74: Distrik	bution of snipe during passage	170
Figure 1.75: Distrik	bution of common sandpiper during winter	171
Figure 1.76: Distrik	bution of common sandpiper during passage	172
Figure 1.77: Distrik	bution of green sandpiper during winter	173
Figure 1.78: Distrib	bution of green sandpiper during passage	174
Figure 1.79: Distrik	bution of redshank during winter	175
Figure 1.80: Distrik	bution of redshank during passage	176
Figure 1.81: Distrik	bution of black-headed gull during the non-breeding season	177
Figure 1.82: Distrik	bution of black-headed gull during the breeding season	178
Figure 1.83: Distrik	bution of common gull during the non-breeding season	179
Figure 1.84: Distrik	bution of great black-backed gull during the non-breeding season	180
Figure 1.85: Distrik	bution of great black-backed gull during the breeding season	181
Figure 1.86: Distrik	bution of herring gull during the non-breeding season	182
Figure 1.87: Distrik	bution of herring gull during the breeding season	183
Figure 1.88: Distrik	bution of lesser black-backed gull during the non-breeding season	184
Figure 1.89: Distrik	bution of lesser black-backed gull during the breeding season	185
Figure 1.90: Distrik	bution of common tern during the non-breeding season	186
Figure 1.91: Distrik	bution of common tern during the breeding season	187
Figure 1.92: Distrik	bution of cormorant during the non-breeding season	188
Figure 1.93: Distrik	bution of cormorant during the breeding season	189
Figure 1.94: Distrik	bution of grey heron during the non-breeding season	190
Figure 1.95: Distrik	bution of grey heron during the breeding season	191
Figure 1.96: Distrik	bution of little egret during the non-breeding season	192
Figure 1.97: Distrik	bution of little egret during the breeding season	193







Glossary

Term	Meaning
Applicants	Morgan Offshore Wind Limited (Morgan OWL) and Morecambe Offshore Windfarm Ltd (Morecambe OWL).
Baseline	The status of the environment without the Transmission Assets in place.
Environmental Statement	The document presenting the results of the Environmental Impact Assessment process.
Expert Working Group	A forum for targeted engagement with regulators and interested stakeholders through the Evidence Plan process.
Habitats Regulations	The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) and the Conservation of Offshore Marine Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended).
Intertidal area	The area between Mean High Water Springs and Mean Low Water Springs.
Intertidal Infrastructure Area	The temporary and permanent areas between MLWS and MHWS.
Landfall	The area in which the offshore export cables make landfall (come on shore) and the transitional area between the offshore cabling and the onshore cabling. This term applies to the entire landfall area at Lytham St. Annes between Mean Low Water Springs and the transition joint bay inclusive of all construction works, including the offshore and onshore cable routes, intertidal working area and landfall compound(s).
Local Nature Reserve	Local Nature Reserves are a statutory designation made under Section 21 of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949 by principal local authorities. Local Nature Reserves comprise areas with wildlife or geological features that are of special interest locally.
Mean High Water Springs	The height of mean high water during spring tides in a year.
Mean Low Water Springs	The height of mean low water during spring tides in a year.
Morgan and Morecambe Offshore Wind Farms: Transmission Assets	The offshore export cables, landfall and onshore infrastructure for the Morgan Offshore Wind Project and the Morecambe Offshore Windfarm. This includes the offshore export cables, landfall site, onshore export cables, onshore substations, 400 kV grid connection cables and associated grid connection infrastructure such as circuit breaker compounds. Also referred to in this report as the Transmission Assets, for ease of reading.
National Nature Reserve	A National Nature Reserve is the land declared under the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949 or Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981) as amended. In England, National Nature Reserves were designated as important places for wildlife and natural features and were established in order to protect areas of habitat and of geological formations.
Onshore Order Limits	See Transmission Assets Order Limits: Onshore (below).







Term	Meaning
Potential Special Protection Areas	A site identified as potentially qualifying for Special Protection Area classification and for which a decision to classify has yet to be taken pending consultation.
Preliminary Environmental Information Report	A report that provides preliminary environmental information in accordance with the Infrastructure Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. This is information that enables consultees to understand the likely significant environmental effects of a project and which helps to inform consultation responses.
Ramsar sites	Wetlands of international importance that have been designated under the criteria of the Ramsar Convention. In combination with Special Protection Areas and Special Areas of Conservation, these sites contribute to the national site network.
Special Protection Areas	A site designation specified in the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, classified for rare and vulnerable birds, and for regularly occurring migratory species. Special Protection Areas contribute to the national site network.
Special Site of Scientific Interest	A Site of Special Scientific Interest is the land notified as such under the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981), as amended. These site are designated as the finest sites for wildlife and natural features in England, supporting many characteristic, rare and endangered species, habitats and natural features.
Study area	This is an area which is defined for each environmental topic which includes the Transmission Assets Order Limits as well as potential spatial and temporal considerations of the impacts on relevant receptors. The study area for each topic is intended to cover the area within which an impact can be reasonably expected.
Survey area	The area within which each survey has been undertaken. This may differ from the Study Area as a Survey Area will be based on species or survey-specific guidance on the extent of survey required, which may be limited by, for example, habitat conditions, or be defined in terms of buffer areas around an area of potential impact.
Transmission Assets	See Morgan and Morecambe Offshore Wind Farms: Transmission Assets (above).
Transmission Assets Order Limits: Onshore	The area within which all components of the Transmission Assets landward of Mean High Water Springs will be located, including areas required on a temporary basis during construction and/or decommissioning (such as construction compounds). Also referred to in this report as the Onshore Order Limits, for ease of reading.

Acronyms

Acronym	Meaning
BOCC5 UK	The fifth review of Birds of Conservation Concern
вто	British Trust for Ornithology
ES	Environmental Statement
EWG	Expert Working Group
GB	Great Britain







Acronym	Meaning
HAT	Highest Astronomical Tide
HPAI	Highly Pathogenic Avian Influenza
LNR	Local Nature Reserve
MLWS	Mean Low Water Springs
NNR	National Nature Reserve
PEIR	Preliminary Environmental Information Report
RSPB	Royal Society for the Protection of Birds
SPA	Special Protection Area
SSSI	Site of Special Scientific Interest
UK	United Kingdom
VPs	Vantage Point
WeBS	Wetland Bird Survey

Units

Unit	Description
%	Percentage
hrs	Hours
ha	Hectares
km	Kilometres
kV	Kilovolt
m	Metre





1 Intertidal birds technical report

1.1 Introduction

- 1.1.1.1 This document forms Annex 4.3: Intertidal birds technical report of the Environmental Statement (ES) prepared for the Morgan and Morecambe Offshore Wind Farms: Transmission Assets (hereafter referred to as the Transmission Assets). It describes the methods used to characterise the baseline intertidal bird assemblage and presents the results of the desk-based studies and site-specific surveys undertaken between 2021 and 2024.
- 1.1.1.2 This annex should be read in conjunction with Volume 3, Annex 4.1: Breeding birds technical report (document reference F3.4.1), Volume 3, Annex 4.2: Wintering and migratory birds technical report (document reference F3.4.2) and Volume 3, Annex 4.4: Onshore and intertidal ornithology survey methodologies of the ES (document reference F3.4.4).
- 1.1.1.3 This baseline information has been used to inform the assessment reported in Volume 3, Chapter 4: Onshore and intertidal ornithology of the ES (document reference F3.4) and Information to Support Appropriate Assessment part 3 (document reference E2.3.C).

1.2 Methodology

1.2.1 Study and survey areas

- 1.2.1.1 In this report, there are two specific terms used to identify areas used for baseline data collection, these are the Transmission Assets intertidal ornithology study area (referred to hereafter as the 'study area') and the Transmission Assets intertidal ornithology survey area.
- 1.2.1.2 The survey area has been split in to two discrete areas for the purpose of the site-specific intertidal surveys: the coastal survey area (**Figure 1.5**) and the estuarine survey area (**Figure 1.6**).

The study area

- 1.2.1.3 The study area has been used to identify the following designated sites with connectivity within 20 kilometres (km) of the Transmission Assets Order Limits: Onshore, hereafter referred to as the Onshore Order Limits, and the Intertidal Infrastructure Area, which may be impacted by the works. The 20 km buffer is based on the maximum foraging range of pink-footed goose *Anser brachyrhynchus* (Scottish Natural Heritage, now NatureScot, 2016).
 - Internationally designated ornithological sites, specifically Special Protection Areas (SPAs), potential SPAs and Ramsar sites with intertidal habitats (Figure 1.1).
 - Nationally designated sites, specifically Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) and National Nature Reserves (NNRs) with intertidal habitats (Figure 1.2).







 Locally designated sites, specifically Local Nature Reserves (LNRs) and Biological Heritage Sites (BHSs) were identified (Figure 1.3).

The survey area

- 1.2.1.4 The survey area was defined as a 500 m buffer around the Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits containing supratidal, intertidal, and subtidal habitats and extending alongshore to the south and north of the Onshore Order Limits and Intertidal Infrastructure Area. This has been added to consider disturbance effects upon the waterbird species present. This distance is based on the maximum potential disturbance distances of key non-breeding species expected to be found as part of the bird assemblage associated with the Ribble Estuary (Goodship and Furness, 2022).
- 1.2.1.5 As there are two areas of distinct intertidal habitats within the survey areas, each area is named and described separately. There is a section of intertidal habitat at the coast (where the landfall is proposed) and there is also a section of intertidal habitat along the Ribble Estuary (which the 400 kV grid connection cable corridor will pass through). These areas have been termed the coastal survey area and the estuarine survey area, respectively, and can be viewed in **Figure 1.4**, **Figure 1.5** and **Figure 1.6**.

The coastal survey area

- 1.2.1.6 The coastal survey area comprises the area below Highest Astronomical Tide (HAT) surrounding the landfall (**Figure 1.5**). The coastal survey area extends approximately 2.5 km in length including a buffer of 500 m either side of the Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits. The survey area extends 1.5 km seawards from HAT. The area consists of supratidal, intertidal and subtidal habitats dominated by sandflats.
- 1.2.1.7 The coastal survey area is a busy beach area between Blackpool and Lytham St Annes which is characterised by high levels of anthropogenic disturbance. It used by numbers of holidaymakers during the summer, and by high numbers of recreational walkers and dog walkers during the winter months. There is also an airport directly to the east with low flying planes and helicopters frequently passing over and is used by a number of anglers and bait fishers (e.g., cockles).

The estuarine survey area

- 1.2.1.8 The estuarine survey area comprises a section of the intertidal habitats of the Ribble Estuary, extending approximately 2.79 km in length (**Figure 1.6**). Intertidal habitats are dominated by mudflats with saltmarsh on the upper shore. The estuarine survey area focuses on the point at which the 400kV cable is due to cross the River Ribble. A 500m buffer was applied upstream and downstream of the Onshore Order Limits.
- 1.2.1.9 The estuarine survey area is characterised on its southern bank by high levels of sheep grazing with a busy footpath running along its extent. The northern bank is not used by sheep and has no public access so is relatively undisturbed.





















Figure 1.2: Intertidal birds study area - Nationally designated sites











Figure 1.3: Intertidal birds study area – Locally designated sites





-12 19 4					- 21
the Bay					1))
E R		Bla	ckpool		- 11
LA Fr		0		-	214
P. T		100	-		1
1 1 2213	-	1	The	400	-
A Share	-	~			-
A Star					10
STAR ME					- I
States of					
La .		0	Southpo	rt	-
and for	-	0		- 30	-
	LE	GEND			
3		Tra	nemieci	n	
1 Since		n al	ismissi	JII here	
- souther the	_	Ass	ets Ons	nore	•
1 11		Ord	er Limit	s and	d
		Inte	rtidal		
A Serd		Infra	astructu	re Ar	rea
	-	- 201	m huff-	r	
Star and		201	un pulle	1	
- mart		Biol	ogical H	lerita	age
四二 唐	-	Site			2.1
1.00		1	ol Net		
and the second		LOC	al Natur	е	
10-3		Res	serve		
12ST					
C.					
18					
Strange Barrier					
The law					
X					
King					
1					
A.L.					
and the second					
MIL					
AL A	1				
No the					
a Carrier					
A Stratte					
Ne					
15-					
1					
1. 1.					
S ASS					
The state					
14 P					
ow Prot					
1. S.					
Kall					
+ Non					
A Los					
431	1				
1					
1 Calle					
-Hart					
山記劇作					
TO 1134 20 201900 0					
		*			
		-K N			IRE
		1 M	IOREC	:AM	IBE
		T No			IBE NERGY.
		En l			
					IBE NERBY
					IBE NERGY S
			IOREC Cobro Provincial Figure 1.3		IBE NERDY IS
	Dra		Figure 1.3		IBE NERGY
	Dra		Figure 1.3 ber:		IBE NERGY
	Dra		Figure 1.3 abber: 593-0216-		IBE NEROY
	Dra	Wing Num 120 DATE	Cooke 2 ru SU ST Figure 1.3 aber: 593-0216- DETAILS		BE NERGY S
	Dra VER 03	Eng wing Nun 120 DATE 19/09/24	Figure 1.3 But of Figure 1.3 aber: 393-0216- DETAILS FINAL	CAN OTATION E CO2 BY AC	
	Dra VER 03	Eng based of based of	Figure 1.3 ber: 593-0216	CO2	BE NERGY CHECK JB





Figure 1.4: Coastal and estuarine survey areas









Figure 1.5: Coastal survey area

FPS











Figure 1.6: Estuarine survey area









1.2.2 Relevant legislation and guidance

- 1.2.2.1 There are two main pieces of legislation that protect birds under United Kingdom (UK) law, namely the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, as amended (the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017) and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended (the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981).
- 1.2.2.2 European Council Directive 2009/147/EC (otherwise known as the Birds Directive) recognised that habitat loss and degradation are the most serious threats to the conservation of wild birds. It stated that all member States must designate SPAs for the survival of all Annex 1 species, sub-species, and all migratory bird species. After the UK left the European Union certain elements of the Birds Directive were transposed into UK law through the Habitats Regulations. This has created a national site network to ensure continued protection for existing SPAs and to any new sites designated under these Regulations.
- 1.2.2.3 All wild birds, their nests and their eggs are protected under Part 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. Subject to the provisions of Section 1, if any person intentionally:
 - kills, injures or takes any wild bird;
 - takes, damages, or destroys the nest of a wild bird included in Schedule ZA1;
 - takes, damages or destroys the nest of any wild bird while that nest is in use or being built; or

takes or destroys an egg of any wild bird, they will be subject to an offence.

- 1.2.2.4 In addition, for birds listed in Schedule 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, it is also an offence to intentionally or recklessly:
 - disturb any species listed under Schedule 1 of the Act whilst it is building a nest or is in, on or near a nest containing eggs or young; or
 - disturb the dependent young of any species listed under Schedule 1.
- 1.2.2.5 The two main pieces of legislation described above are supported by additional legislation. One key piece of legislation is Section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006, which provides a list of 'species and habitats of principle importance'. Public bodies, including local authorities have a legal duty to have regard to conserving biodiversity in the exercise of their normal functions.
- 1.2.2.6 The collation of baseline data presented within this annex has considered the following guidance.
 - Chartered Institute of Ecology and Environmental Management (CIEEM) guidelines on ecological impact assessment (CIEEM, 2022).
 - Offshore Wind Marine Environmental Assessments: Best Practice Advice for Evidence and Data Standards. Phase I: Expectations for preapplication baseline data for designated nature conservation and







landscape receptors to support offshore wind applications (Natural England, 2022).

1.2.3 Consultation

- 1.2.3.1 The proposed intertidal bird survey methodology and findings to date were presented at the first Expert Working Group (EWG) in March 2023.
- 1.2.3.2 The overarching methodologies presented have been agreed by all consultees following the presentation, and comments on detailed methodologies were provided in September 2023. Minor amendments to the survey methodologies, in relation to the feedback provided by Natural England, are reflected in Volume 3, Annex 4.4: Onshore and intertidal ornithology survey methodologies of the ES.
- 1.2.3.3 More details regarding consultation relevant to onshore and intertidal ornithology can be found in Volume 3, Chapter 4: Onshore and intertidal ornithology of the ES.

1.2.4 Approach to establishing the baseline

- 1.2.4.1 In order to establish a baseline of intertidal ornithological receptors within the study and survey areas a combination of site-specific surveys and review of existing data sources have been undertaken. The methodology followed during the site-specific surveys is described in **section 1.4.3**. The detailed methodology is presented in Volume 3, Annex 4.4: Onshore and intertidal ornithology survey methodologies of the ES (document reference F3.4.4).
- 1.2.4.2 The results of the desk-based study undertaken are described in **section 1.3** and the results of the surveys in **section 1.4.5**.

1.2.5 Desk-based study data sources

1.2.5.1 Information on intertidal waterbirds within the survey area was collected through a desk-based review of existing data sources. These sources are summarised in **Table 1.1** below.





Table 1.1: Summary of key sources for the desk-based study

Title	Source	Year published	Author	Year data obtained
Wetland Bird Survey (WeBS), Core count 5-Year summary:	British Trust for Ornithology (BTO)	2022	BTO/RSPB/Joint Nature	2023
 River Ribble – Bull Nose-Clifton Marsh (2017/18 to 2021/22); and 	data request of WeBS core count data.		Conservation Committee (JNCC).	
• St. Annes Beach (2017/18 to 2021/22).				
Fylde Bird Club records.	Fylde Bird Club	2023	Ellis, P.	2023
Fylde – Sand Extraction, Lytham St. Annes 2020/2021 Wintering Bird Report.	Golder Associates UK Ltd.	2021	Brookes, F.	2023
Morecambe Offshore Windfarm Fylde Export Cable Route: Coastal and Estuarine Wintering Bird Survey Report-2021/2022.	Avian Ecology Ltd.	2022	Hinchcliffe, Z.	2022

Wetland Bird Survey (WeBS) records

- 1.2.5.2 WeBS core count data were obtained for two WeBS sectors that overlap with the intertidal survey areas at the coastal survey area and the estuarine survey area. Data was provided by WeBS, a Partnership jointly funded by the British Trust for Ornithology, Royal Society for the Protection of Birds and Joint Nature Conservation Committee, in association with The Wildfowl & Wetlands Trust, with fieldwork conducted by volunteers.
- 1.2.5.3 Records provided detail of annual peak counts for waterbird species and the five-year mean of peaks. Data is split into the WeBS year (running July to June) giving annual data between 2017/18 through to 2021/2022 (**Figure 1.7**, **Table 1.1**).
- 1.2.5.4 It should be noted that during WeBS core count surveys the recording of gulls and terns is optional for those conducting the surveys. Therefore, there is a possibility that these species are underreported within this dataset. Counts are made on a once per month over a high tide period on predetermined dates, where possible. This is to reduce the possibility of double counting or missing individual birds.

Fylde Bird Club data

- 1.2.5.5 Fylde Bird Club records were provided for a total of 26 tetrad squares (2 km by 2 km squares) within or partly within the survey area. In terms of spatial coverage, the Fylde Bird Club data provided complete coverage of the survey area.
- 1.2.5.6 Records were provided detailing a combination of individual species counts, dates and locations recorded across all months for ten years of data (2014 to 2023).







- 1.2.5.7 The Fylde Bird Club data records provide a wealth of valuable data, in particular providing evidence of a species presence within the survey area. However, the records do not necessarily represent an accurate relative abundance of all species present in the area due to the non-systematic nature of the field data collection (although it is noted that some Fylde Bird Club members may systematically count sectors or contribute to WeBS counts). Local records often include notable ornithological records of rarities but not necessarily regularly submitted records of common species within defined survey areas. It should be noted that surveyors for the Fylde Bird Club do not access the south bank of the River Ribble but may record birds from the north bank.
- 1.2.5.8 The annual peak counts are presented to indicate the highest number of records held by the Fylde Bird Club in one of the latest five years. The five-year peak count represents the maximum abundance recorded by the Fylde Bird Club between 2018 and 2023.

Processing the Fylde Bird Club data records

- 1.2.5.9 As outlined above, data was provided for abundance of birds within 26 tetrads. To consider which species may be using the habitats within the coastal and estuarine survey areas, data was filtered for any tetrads that overlap with these areas.
- 1.2.5.10 The resulting data was then filtered to exclude any tetrads within which waterbird species were not recorded. Any remaining non-waterbirds were then filtered out of the remaining data. Data was split into the WeBS year (running from July to June).
- 1.2.5.11 It is noted that the Fylde Bird Club data includes count data from sea watches which inherently include records of birds in flight. It must be noted that most of the birds in flight will only be passing through the survey area.

Fylde Sand Extraction data

1.2.5.12 Wintering bird surveys of land associated with sand extraction for commercial purposes at Lytham St. Annes were conducted by Turnstone Ecology UK Ltd on behalf of Golder Associates UK Ltd under commission from Fylde Borough Council. The surveys took place on the beach at Lytham St. Annes from the low tide to high tide line (i.e., the intertidal zone) and extended from the Ribble Estuary in the south to Squires Gate Lane, Blackpool to the north (Brookes, 2021). Six survey visits were conducted between October 2020 and March 2021 with the aim of gaining an understanding of the value of the area to ornithological receptors, and wetland birds in particular.

Morecambe Offshore Windfarm Fylde export cable route data

- 1.2.5.13 Intertidal vantage point and nocturnal surveys were undertaken by Avian Ecology Ltd that overlap with the coastal survey area.
- 1.2.5.14 Two types of survey were conducted, vantage point surveys and nocturnal surveys. Twice monthly diurnal surveys were undertaken at each vantage point between October 2021 and April 2022 giving a total of 14 visits and 28







hours of observation time. Nocturnal surveys were carried out monthly between February 2022 and April 2022. The data is presented in Hinchcliffe (2022).











		10		1	100
			-	-	1
		0	chpour	-	-
inso		1º	-		1
			and		3
い い い の の の					0/10
30				1	
2		0	Southpo	rt .	3
	1.6	GEND	-	-	
No.		Tra	aemieei	20	
pto		Ass	ets Ord	er	
		Lim	its: Ons	hore	
ook		and	Intertid	al	
1		Infra	astructu	re Ai	rea
D II		St A	nne's B	each	n -
		574	56		
1	-	Riv	er Ribble	e - B	ull
Col Fa	-	Mai	sh - 57	0n 375	
intert		ividi	311- 37	15	
E					
刻					
02/10					
Call Call					
Z					
ASA B					
-					
之					
20					
VS					
22					
No.					
50					
SA-					
A					
A					
1					
En la					
G					
ST.					
9					
LC					
1					
100		1			
CH CH		N	IOREC	AN	IBE
自	7	6		DIATION E	HERBY
100	-	Eng	BM 🔘	٢P	5
Band and	-	P.D'Barris, T. U.	Figure 1.7		
高い	Dra	wing Nur	nber:	-	
		12	693-0386-	-02	4
nott	VER	DATE	DETAILS	PV	CHECK
15	02	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
		1	111	1271	1.1







1.2.6 Designated sites

- 1.2.6.1 As noted in **section 1.2.1.3**, all internationally and nationally designated sites with intertidal habitats and all locally designated sites were identified within the study area. The distances set out are based on the home range of pinkfooted goose as stated in the Scottish Natural Heritage, now NatureScot, guidance document (Scottish National Heritage, 2016). Citations for each site were reviewed to identify those waterbirds which may use intertidal habitats and nearshore waters.
- 1.2.6.2 Within this annex, reference is only made to designated sites which have supratidal, intertidal or subtidal habitats, or have connectivity to the study area (i.e., inland wetland sites, or breeding bird sites within the foraging range of said species).

1.2.7 Conservation status

- 1.2.7.1 For the species considered likely to be present, consideration was also given to their conservation status, specifically whether the species were listed on Annex 1 under the Birds Directive or on Schedule 1 under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.
- 1.2.7.2 Consideration was given to species listed as priority species by the Secretary of State under Section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 or species listed as either red or amber-listed species on the Birds of Conservation Concern 5 (hereafter BOCC5 UK) (Stanbury *et al.*, 2021). Lastly, consideration was also given to those species listed as a Lancashire Biodiversity Action Plan (LBAP) species (Lancashire County Council, 2024).

1.3 Desk-based study – baseline characterisation

1.3.1 Designated sites with intertidal habitats

SPAs

- 1.3.1.1 There are four SPAs with intertidal habitats and/or connectivity to the survey area within or partly within the study area. These are the Ribble and Alt Estuaries SPA, Morecambe Bay and Duddon Estuary SPA, Bowland Fells SPA, and Liverpool Bay/Bae Lerpwl SPA. A summary of the designated features is provided below. Some species may be designated for the breeding and/or non-breeding seasons.
 - Liverpool Bay/Bae Lerpwl SPA is designated for a total of five seabird species including two breeding features as well as three non-breeding features. The site also supports a non-breeding bird assemblage.
 - Morecambe Bay and Duddon Estuary SPA is designated for a total of 24 species including 20 non-breeding features and five breeding features. The site also supports a bird assemblage consisting of a range of species in addition to the species listed.





- The Ribble and Alt Estuaries SPA is designated for a total of 20 species including 17 non-breeding features and three breeding features. The area also supports a waterbird assemblage and a seabird assemblage in addition to the individually named species.
- Bowland Fells SPA is designated for breeding lesser black-backed gulls. The other upland breeding features have no connectivity with Transmission Assets.

Table 1.2: Ornithological features of SPAs within or partly within the study area

SPA	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest features	Designated season	SPA population from citation (dates in brackets)
Ribble and Alt Estuaries	Partly within Intertidal	Pink-footed goose	Non-breeding	11,764 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
0K9005103	and Onshore Order Limits	Bewick's swan Cygnus columbianus bewickii	Non-breeding	276 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Whooper swan <i>Cygnus cygnus</i>	Non-breeding	182 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Shelduck <i>Tadorna tadorna</i>	Non-breeding	4,925 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Wigeon <i>Anas</i> penelope	Non-breeding	85,259 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Pintail <i>Anas</i> acuta	Non-breeding	2,731 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Teal Anas crecca	Non-breeding	7,157 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Scaup Aythya marila	Non-breeding	Assemblage feature
		Common scoter <i>Melanitta nigra</i>	Non-breeding	Assemblage feature
		Oystercatcher Haematopus ostralegus	Non-breeding	18,535 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Lapwing Vanellus vanellus	Non-breeding	Assemblage feature
		Golden plover Pluvialis apricaria	Non-breeding	3,598 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Grey plover Pluvialis squatarol	Non-breeding	9,355 (1993/94 to 1997/98)







SPA	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest features	Designated season	SPA population from citation (dates in brackets)
		Ringed plover Charadrius hiaticula	Non-breeding	1,657 (1993 to 1997)
		Whimbrel <i>Numenius</i> <i>phaeopus</i>	Non-breeding	Assemblage feature
		Curlew <i>Numenius</i> arquata	Non-breeding	Assemblage feature
		Bar-tailed godwit <i>Limosa</i> <i>Iapponica</i>	Non-breeding	20,086 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Black-tailed godwit <i>Limosa</i> <i>limosa</i>	Non-breeding	1,273 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Knot Calidris canutus	Non-breeding	68,922 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Ruff Calidris pugnax	Breeding	1 pair (late 1980s count)
		Sanderling <i>Calidris alba</i>	Non-breeding	6,535 (passage, 1993 to 1997) 2,882 (wintering, 1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Dunlin Calidris alpina	Non-breeding	39,376 (1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Redshank <i>Tringa totanus</i>	Non-breeding	3,247 (passage, 1993 to 1997) 2,505 (wintering, 1993/94 to 1997/98)
		Black-headed gull <i>Chroicocephalus</i> <i>ridibundus</i>	Breeding	Assemblage feature
		Lesser black- backed gull <i>Larus fuscus</i>	Breeding	1,800 (1993 count)
		Common tern Sterna hirundo	Breeding	182 pairs (1996 count)
		Cormorant Phalacrocorax carbo	Non-breeding	Assemblage feature

~	0	
ATETRA	TECH CO	MPANY





SPA	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest features	Designated season	SPA population from citation (dates in brackets)
Liverpool Bay/Bae Lerpwl UK9020294	0.00	Common scoter	Non-breeding	56,679 (2004/05 to 2010/11)
		Little gull Hydrocoloeus minutus	Non-breeding	319 (2004/05 to 2010/11)
		Little tern Sternula albifrons	Breeding	260 (2010 to 2014, Seabird Monitoring Programme)
		Common tern	Breeding	360 (2010 to 2014, Seabird Monitoring Programme)
		Red-throated diver Gavia stellata	Non-breeding	1,171 (2004/05 to 2010/11)
Morecambe Bay and Duddon Estuary UK9020326	9.5	Light-bellied brent goose (Nearctic origin) <i>Branta bernicla</i>	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Pink-footed goose	Non-breeding	15,648 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Whooper swan	Non-breeding	113 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Shelduck	Non-breeding	5,878(2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Wigeon	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Mallard Anas platyrhynchos	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Pintail	Non-breeding	2,498 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Teal	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Green-winged teal <i>Anas</i> carolinensis	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Ring-necked duck <i>Aythya</i> <i>collari</i> s	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Eider Somateria mollissima	Non-breeding	Assemblage feature







SPA	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest features	Designated season	SPA population from citation (dates in brackets)
		Goldeneye Bucephala clangula	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Red-breasted merganser <i>Mergus serrator</i>	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Oystercatcher	Non-breeding	55,888 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Lapwing	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Golden plover	Non-breeding	1,900 (Morecambe Bay SPA citation value 1991)
		Grey plover	Non-breeding	2,000 (Morecambe Bay SPA citation value 1991)
		Ringed plover	Non-breeding	1,049 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Curlew	Non-breeding	12,209 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Bar-tailed godwit	Non-breeding	3,046 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Black-tailed godwit	Non-breeding	2,413 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Turnstone Arenaria interpres	Non-breeding	1,359 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Knot	Non-breeding	32,739 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Ruff	Non-breeding	8 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Sanderling	Non-breeding	3,600 (Morecambe Bary SPA citation value 1991)
		Dunlin	Non-breeding	26,982 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Little stint <i>Calidris minuta</i>	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Little egret Egretta garzetta	Non-breeding	134 (2009/10 to 2013/14)







SPA	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest features	Designated season	SPA population from citation (dates in brackets)
		Redshank	Non-breeding	11,133 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Spotted redshank <i>Tringa</i> <i>erythropus</i>	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Greenshank <i>Tringa nebularia</i>	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Black-headed gull	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Mediterranean gull <i>Larus</i> <i>melanocephalus</i>	Non-breeding	18 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Common gull <i>Larus canus</i>	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Herring gull <i>Larus</i> <i>argentatus</i>	Breeding Non-breeding	20,000 (Morecambe Bay SPA citation value 1991) Assemblage feature
		Lesser black- backed gull	Breeding Non-breeding	9,720 (2011 to 2015) 9,450 (2009/10 to 2013/14)
		Sandwich tern Sterna sandvicensis	Breeding	1,608 (1988 to 1992)
		Little tern	Breeding	84 (2010 to 2014)
		Common tern	Breeding	570 570 (Morecambe Bay SPA citation value 1991)
		Cormorant	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Eurasian spoonbill <i>Platalea</i> <i>leucorodia</i>	Any season	Assemblage feature
		Great white egret <i>Ardea alba</i>	Any season	Assemblage feature
Bowland Fells UK9005151	17.6	Lesser black- backed gull	Non-breeding	4,575 pairs (2009 to 2012)







Ramsar sites

- 1.3.1.2 There are two Ramsar sites within the study area with intertidal habitats: the Ribble and Alt Estuaries Ramsar site, and Morecambe Bay Ramsar site.
- 1.3.1.3 A summary of the designated features is listed below, and a complete list of the wintering and migratory feature species for each Ramsar site is detailed in **Table 1.3**.
 - Morecambe Bay Ramsar site is designated for a total of 21 species including seabirds, waders, wildfowl, swan and geese. The site also supports a breeding assemblage of seabirds and a wintering assemblage of waterbirds.
 - The Ribble and Alt Estuaries Ramsar site is designated for 18 species including wildfowl, swan and geese, waders and gulls. The site also supports an assemblage of breeding wetland birds and an assemblage of non-breeding waterbirds.

Table 1.3:Designated features of Ramsar sites within or partly within the study
area

Ramsar site	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest feature	Designated season	Population size at designation (dates in brackets)
Ribble and Alt Estuaries	Partly within Intertidal Infrastructure Area	Pink-footed goose	Wintering	6,552 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
UK11057	Limits	Bewick's swan	Wintering	230 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Whooper swan	Wintering	211 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Shoveler	Wintering	200 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Wigeon	Wintering	69,841 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Pintail	Wintering	1,497 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Teal	Wintering	5,107 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Common scoter	Wintering	691 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Oystercatcher	Wintering	18,926 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Golden plover	Wintering	3,588 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Grey plover	Passage	11,021 (1998/99 to 2002/03)







Ramsar site	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest feature	Designated season	Population size at designation (dates in brackets)
		Ringed plover	Passage	3,761 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Curlew	Passage	2,502 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Bar-tailed godwit	Wintering	13,935 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Black-tailed godwit	Passage	3,323 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Knot	Passage	42,692 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Ruff	Passage	60 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Sanderling	Passage	7,401 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Dunlin	Passage	38,196 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Redshank	Passage	4,465 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Spotted redshank	Wintering	2 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Greenshank	Passage	9(1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Black-headed gull	Wintering Breeding	16,849 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
				14,888 (Seabird 2000 Census)
		Common tern	Breeding	364 (1996)
		Red-throated diver	Wintering	56 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
		Cormorant	Wintering	463 (1998/99 to 2002/03)
Morecambe Bay UK11045	9.5	Pink-footed goose	Wintering	2,475 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Shelduck	Wintering	6,372 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Wigeon	Wintering	5,838 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Pintail	Wintering	2,804 (1991/92 to 1995/96)







Ramsar site	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest feature	Designated season	Population size at designation (dates in brackets)
		Eider	Wintering	6,400 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Goldeneye	Wintering	445 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Red-breasted merganser	Wintering	292 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Great crested grebe Podiceps cristatus	Wintering	318 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Oystercatcher	Wintering	47,572 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Lapwing	Wintering	17,669 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Golden plover	Wintering	4,097 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Grey plover	Wintering	1,813 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Ringed plover	Passage	693 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Curlew	Wintering	13,620 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Bar-tailed godwit	Wintering	2,611 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Turnstone	Wintering	1,583 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Knot	Wintering	29,426 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Sanderling	Passage	2,466 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Dunlin	Wintering	52,671 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Redshank	Wintering	6,336 (1991/92 to 1995/96)
		Cormorant	Wintering	879 (1991/92 to 1995/96)

SSSIs

1.3.1.4 A total of eight SSSIs with ornithological features within or partly within the study area have intertidal habitats or potential connectivity. These SSSIs and





the relevant features for which they are designated for are described in **Table 1.4**.

1.3.1.5 The Intertidal and Onshore Infrastructure Areas overlap two SSSIs at the landfall. Lytham St Annes Dunes SSSI is composed entirely of sand dune habitats that lie directly above HAT, and the Ribble Estuary SSSI that underpins large extents of the Ribble and Alt Estuaries SPA and Ramsar includes all intertidal and supratidal habitats between MLWS and HAT.

Table 1.4:SSSIs with intertidal habitats or potential connectivity within the study
area

SSSI	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest features
Lytham St. Annes Dunes	Partly within Onshore Order Limits	Stonechat Saxicola rubicola
Ribble Estuary	Partly within Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits	Pink-footed goose
		Bewick's swan
		Whooper swan
		Shelduck
		Shoveler
		Wigeon
		Mallard
		Pintail
		Teal
		Oystercatcher
		Lapwing
		Golden plover
		Grey plover
		Ringed plover
		Curlew
		Bar-tailed godwit
		Black-tailed godwit
		Knot
		Ruff
		Sanderling
		Dunlin
		Snipe
		Redshank







SSSI	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest features
		Black-headed gull
		Common tern
		Skylark Alauda arvensis
		Lowland damp grasslands - assemblages of breeding birds
		Sand-dunes and saltmarshes - assemblages of breeding birds
		More than 20,000 non-breeding waterbirds
Newton Marsh	0.02	Mute swan <i>Cygnus olor</i>
		Shelduck
		Wigeon
		Mallard
		Teal
		Moorhen Gallinula chloropus
		Coot
		Little grebe
		Oystercatcher
		Lapwing
		Golden plover
		Bar-tailed godwit
		Black-tailed godwit
		Sanderling
		Dunlin
		Snipe
		Common sandpiper
		Redshank
		Spotted redshank
		Greenshank
		Skylark
		Yellow wagtail Motacilla flava
		Meadow pipit Anthus pratensis
		Corn bunting Emberiza calandra
		Reed bunting Emberiza schoeniclus







SSSI	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest features
Marton Mere	3.78	Shoveler
		Mallard
		Pochard Aythya ferina
		Tufted duck Aythya fuligula
		Coot <i>Fulica atra</i>
		Little grebe Tachybaptus ruficollis
		Great crested grebe
		Oystercatcher
		Curlew
		Ruff
		Redshank
		Greenshank
Wyre estuary	8.81	Teal
		Oystercatcher
		Lapwing
		Golden plover
		Black-tailed godwit
		Turnstone
		Dunlin
		Redshank
Sefton coast	8.63	Oystercatcher
		Grey plover
		Ringed plover
		Bar-tailed godwit
		Knot
		Sanderling
		Dunlin
Lune Estuary	16.7	Pink-footed goose
		Shelduck
		Wigeon
		Mallard
		Oystercatcher







SSSI	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest features
		Grey plover
		Ringed plover
		Curlew
		Turnstone
		Knot
		Sanderling
		Dunlin
		Redshank
		Common tern
Bowland Fells	17.6	Oystercatcher
		Lapwing
		Golden plover
		Curlew
		Snipe
		Common sandpiper Actitis hypoleucos
		Redshank
		Lesser black-backed gull
		Merlin Falco columbarius

NNRs

1.3.1.6 Two NNRs have ornithological features that may use intertidal habitats within the study area, details of which can be seen in **Table 1.5**.





Table 1.5: NNRs within the study area with intertidal habitat

NNR	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)	Interest feature from NNR site description
Ribble Estuary	0.68	Lesser black-backed gull (season not specified)
		Saltmarsh - non-breeding birds – migratory species curlew, lapwing
		Saltmarsh - non-breeding Annex 1 species
		Saltmarsh - a seabird assemblage of international importance (season not specified)
		Saltmarsh - littoral sediment internationally significant migratory birds waterfowl
		Saltmarsh - littoral sediment internationally significant populations of regularly occurring migratory bird species
		Saltmarsh - breeding birds Annex 1 species
		Saltmarsh breeding birds of conservation concern and Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) species
		Saltmarsh - nationally important breeding bird populations
Ainsdale Sand Dunes	15.6	Supralittoral sediment: Aggregations of non- breeding birds
		Supralittoral sediment: Sand dune breeding birds

LNRs

1.3.1.7 There are 17 LNRs within or partly within the study area. A list of these LNRs and their distance from the Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits are provided in **Table 1.6**. LNRs do not have qualifying features in the same way SPAs/SSSIs do, so specific species cannot be identified. All LNRs and BHSs within 20 km have been included for this reason.




Table 1.6:LNRs within the study area

LNR	Distance from Intertidal Infrastructure Area and Onshore Order Limits (km)
Lytham St. Annes	Partly within Onshore Order Limits
Fishwick Bottoms	0.03
Longton Brickcroft	1.62
Haslam Park, Preston	2.02
Preston Junction	2.17
Marton Mere	3.78
Hills and Hollows	6.16
Grange Valley	6.63
Pope Land Open Space	7.39
Ainsdale and Birkdale Hills	10.88
Withnell Fold	10.96
Pleasington Old Hall Woods	13.50
Withnell Nature Reserve	13.54
Hic Bibi, Coppull	15.62
River Darwen Parkway	16.72
Sunnyhurst Woods	16.84
Arran Trail	19.19

BHS

1.3.1.8 There are 17 BHSs within (see **section 1.3.1.7** for explanation on why no species have been listed), or partly within, the study area. A list of the BHSs and their distances to the Transmission Assets Order Limits is provided in **Table 1.7.**





Table 1.7: BHSs within, or partly within, the study area

BHS	Distance from Transmission Assets Order Limits (km)
Lytham Moss	Partly within Onshore Order Limits
River Ribble, Lower Tidal Section	Partly within Onshore Order Limits
Pippy Lane Banks	0.04
Willowmead Park Swap (Moss Side)	0.59
Lytham Moss Copses	0.72
Freckleton Naze	0.99
Lytham Hall Woods	0.99
LSCLA Lancaster Canal Whole Length in Lancashire Including Glasson Branch	1.49
Hesketh Old and New Marsh Fields	3.76
River Douglas Estuary	4.06
Marsh Farm Fields	5.37
Hesketh Old Marsh Embankment	5.57
Hesketh Bank Brickworks, North (Alty's)	6.30
Manor Farm Pastures	6.41
Martin Mere Mosslands	8.99
Halsall and Plex Mosses	16.10
King's Covert	16.52

1.3.2 WeBS core count five-year summary

- 1.3.2.1 WeBS core count data was obtained for two sectors that overlap with the intertidal survey areas at landfall (the coastal survey area) and at the river Ribble crossing point (the estuarine survey area), these are titles St Annes Beach and River Ribble-Bull Nose-Clifton Marsh respectively. Records provided detail of annual peak counts for waterbird species and the five-year mean of peaks. Data is split into the WeBS year (running July to June) giving annual data between 2017/18 through to 2021/22. The five-year mean of peaks provides the mean of each annual peak over five years of data.
- 1.3.2.2 A short summary of the species recorded is documented below with all species recorded at each section listed in **Table 1.8.**

St. Annes Beach

1.3.2.3 Species from a total of four taxonomic groups were recorded at the St. Annes Beach sector including cormorant and shag, geese, duck and swan, gull and tern and wader.





1.3.2.4 The most abundant groups were wader with a sum of five-year peak counts of 6,448 individuals. This group was followed by gull and tern (2,312 individuals), geese, duck and swan (199 individuals) and cormorant and shag (113 individuals).

Geese, duck and swan

1.3.2.5 A total of six goose, duck and swan species were recorded at St Annes beach. The most abundant species were pink-footed goose with a five-year peak count of 67 and a five-year mean of peaks of 34. Whooper swan had a five-year peak count of 41 and a five-year mean of peaks of 14. Common scoter were the third most abundant species with a five-year peak count of five and a five-year mean of peaks of three individuals. This was followed by shelduck, pintail and eider.

Wader

1.3.2.6 A total of 12 species of wader were recorded at St. Annes beach. The most abundant of these species was sanderling (five-year peak count of 2,385 and five-year mean of peaks of 1,163), this was followed by dunlin (1,550 and 676) and knot (1,500 and 626). Oystercatcher, grey plover, turnstone and ringed plover were also recorded on at least one occasion in each of the five analysed years.

Gull and tern

- 1.3.2.7 Seven species of gull and tern were recorded at St. Annes beach despite the recording of the group being optional.
- 1.3.2.8 The most abundant species were herring gull with a five-year peak count of 1,700 and a five-year mean of peaks of 662. This was followed by sandwich tern with a five-year peak count of 370 and a five-year mean of peaks of 123. Black-headed gull, common gull and great black-backed gull were also recorded on at least one occasion in each of the five analysed years.

Cormorant and shag

1.3.2.9 Cormorant were recorded with a five-year peak count of 113 individuals and a five-year mean of peaks of 43.

River Ribble-Bull Nose-Clifton Marsh

- 1.3.2.10 Species from a total of seven taxonomic groups were recorded within the River Ribble-Bull Nose-Clifton Marsh sector, including cormorant and shag, geese, duck and swan, grebe, gull and tern, heron, rail, crake and coot and wader.
- 1.3.2.11 The most abundant taxonomic group were waders with a five-year peak counts totalling 6,314 individuals. This was followed by geese, duck and swan (3,314 individuals) and gull and tern (1,536 individuals).







Geese, duck and swan

- 1.3.2.12 A total of 15 goose, duck and swan species were recorded. The most abundant species were wigeon with a five-year peak count of 995 individuals and a five-year mean of peaks of 748. The was followed by Canada goose with a five-year peak count of 870 and a five-year mean of peaks of 462. A five-year peak count of 381 was made for teal and a five-year mean of peaks of 205.
- 1.3.2.13 Mallard and shelduck were also recorded in each of the five years of analysed data.

Rail, crake and coot

- 1.3.2.14 Two species from this taxonomic group were recorded at River Ribble-Bull Nose-Clifton Marsh, moorhen and coot.
- 1.3.2.15 Coot were the most abundant of the two species with a five-year peak count of two and a five-year mean of peaks of one. Moorhen also have a five-year mean of peaks of one but a five-year peak count of three.

Grebe

1.3.2.16 One species of grebe, great crested grebe was recorded. The five-year peak count was one and the five-year mean of peaks was one.

Wader

- 1.3.2.17 A total of 14 species of wader were recorded at River Ribble-Bull Nose-Clifton Marsh. The most abundant species were lapwing with a five-year peak count of 2,800 and a five-year mean of peaks of 1,582. This was followed by black-tailed godwit (five-year peak of 1,900 and five-year mean of peaks of 382) and dunlin (five-year peak of 760 and a five-year mean of peaks of 203).
- 1.3.2.18 Lapwing, redshank and oystercatcher were the only species to be recorded in each of the five years of data.

Gull and tern

- 1.3.2.19 Six species of gull and tern were recorded at River Ribble-Bull Nose-Clifton Marsh. This comprised of five gull species and one species of tern. All five gull species were recorded on at least one occasion in each of the five analysed years, whereas common tern were recorded in two of the five years.
- 1.3.2.20 The most abundant species were black-headed gull with a five-year peak count of 680 and a five-year mean of peaks of 402. This was followed by herring gull (five-year peak of 350 and five-year mean of peaks of 223) and lesser black-backed gull (five-year peak of 223 and five-year mean of peaks of 118).







Cormorant and shag

1.3.2.21 Cormorant were recorded with a five-year peak count of 58 and a five-year mean of peaks of 24.

Heron

- 1.3.2.22 Two species of heron, little egret and grey heron *Ardea cinerea*, were recorded at River Ribble-Bull Nose-Clifton Marsh. Both species were recorded on at least one occasion over the five years of analysed data.
- 1.3.2.23 The most abundant of the two species were little egret with a five-year peak count of 23 and a five-year mean of peaks of 10. Grey heron had a five-year peak count of six and a five-year mean of peaks of three.

Table 1.8:Summary of WeBS core count data for sectors overlapping with theintertidal survey areas for years 2017/18 through to 2021/22

Taxonomic group	Species	Minimum five- year peak (2017/18 to 2021/22)	Maximum five- year peak (2017/18 to 2021/22)	Five-year mean of peaks (2017/18 to 2021/22)
St Annes Beach				
Geese, duck and	Pink-footed goose	0	67	34
swan	Whooper swan	0	41	14
	Shelduck	0	3	2
	Common scoter	0	5	3
	Pintail	0	2	1
	Eider	0	1	1
Wader	Oystercatcher	232	440	319
	Curlew	0	4	2
	Golden plover	0	10	5
	Grey plover	127	290	189
	Ringed plover	17	50	38
	Bar-tailed godwit	0	60	34
	Black-tailed godwit	0	45	23
	Knot	84	1500	626
	Turnstone	11	71	32
	Sanderling	340	2385	1163
	Dunlin	220	1550	676
	Redshank	0	43	22
Gull and tern	Black-headed gull	35	118	84





Taxonomic group	Species	Minimum five- year peak (2017/18 to 2021/22)	Maximum five- year peak (2017/18 to 2021/22)	Five-year mean of peaks (2017/18 to 2021/22)
	Common gull	7	80	33
	Great black-backed gull	5	20	11
	Herring gull	49	1700	662
	Lesser black- backed gull	0	21	7
	Sandwich tern	0	370	123
	Common tern	0	3	1
Cormorant and shag	Cormorant	0	113	43
River Ribble-Bul	II nose-Clifton Ma	ırsh		
Geese, duck and swan	Canada goose <i>Branta canadensis</i>	65	870	462
	Barnacle goose <i>Branta leucopsis</i>	0	1	1
	Greylag goose (British/Irish)	0	263	146
	Domestic greylag goose	0	11	5
	Pink-footed goose	0	125	36
	Hybrid goose	0	3	1
	Mute swan	0	19	9
	Whooper swan	0	340	90
	Egyptian goose <i>Alopochen</i> aegyptiaca	0	3	1
	Shelduck	18	108	70
	Wigeon	247	995	748
	Mallard	16	181	100
	Domestic mallard	0	3	1
	Teal	25	381	205
	Goosander Mergus merganser	2	11	6
Rail, crake and coot	Coot	0	2	1
	Moorhen	0	3	1







Taxonomic group	Species	Minimum five- year peak (2017/18 to 2021/22)	Maximum five- year peak (2017/18 to 2021/22)	Five-year mean of peaks (2017/18 to 2021/22)
Grebe	Great crested grebe	0	1	1
Wader	Oystercatcher	23	86	49
	Avocet	0	8	2
	Lapwing	190	2800	1582
	Golden plover	0	80	20
	Ringed plover	0	2	0
	Whimbrel	0	52	11
	Curlew	2	428	227
	Black-tailed godwit	0	1900	382
	Ruff	0	8	2
	Dunlin	0	760	203
	Common sandpiper	0	2	1
	Redshank	18	178	66
	Greenshank	0	4	1
	Snipe	0	6	3
Gull and tern	Black-headed gull	131	680	402
	Common gull	2	188	59
	Great black-backed gull	9	62	37
	Herring gull	71	350	223
	Lesser black- backed gull	35	223	118
	Common tern	0	33	8
Cormorant and shag	Cormorant	6	58	24
Heron, and storks	Little egret	3	23	10
	Grey heron	1	6	3

1.3.3 Summary of Fylde Bird club data species records

Coastal survey area

1.3.3.1 Following the data processing described in **section 1.2.5**, a total of 91 species were recorded as present within tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area on at least one occasion during the most recent available five years of complete data (2018/19 through to 2022/23).





- 1.3.3.2 Of the 91 species recorded the most abundant taxonomic group were geese, ducks and swans (22,340 individuals) when looking at the sum of five-year peak counts. This was followed by gull and tern (18,624 individuals) and waders (16,886). An additional 5,168 individual birds (five-year peak counts) were recorded from seven other taxonomic groups: cormorant and shag, diver, grebe, heron and stork, rail, crake and coot, seabird and skua. A total of 256 unidentified auk species (five-year peak counts) and one unidentified skua species were also recorded.
- 1.3.3.3 A short summary of the species present and abundance for each taxonomic group is provided below, with all species detailed and listed in **Table 1.9.**

Geese, duck and swan

- 1.3.3.4 A total of 27 goose, duck and swan species were recorded as present within tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area.
- 1.3.3.5 When analysing the five-year peak count, the most abundant species were common scoter (16,345 individuals), pink-footed goose (4,569 individuals), Canada goose (343 individuals), pintail (257 individuals) and whooper swan (235 individuals). As Canada goose is an introduced species, abundance is not presented in this taxonomic group account. Excluding Canada goose, the fifth most abundant species were wigeon (145 individuals).
- 1.3.3.6 The five-year mean of peaks shows the same five species as the most abundant but whooper swan displayed higher counts than pintail with a mean of 128 (rounded up to a whole number) compared to 86. Wigeon had a fiveyear mean of peaks of 83, pink-footed goose was 1,993 and common scoter was still the most abundant species with a five-year mean of peaks of 7,155.

Rail, crake and coot

- 1.3.3.7 One species from this taxonomic group was recorded within tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area, moorhen.
- 1.3.3.8 The species was recorded in each of the five most recent years and have a five-year peak count of six and a five-year mean of peaks of three.

Grebe

- 1.3.3.9 Two species of grebe were recorded within tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area, great crested grebe and red-necked grebe *Podiceps grisegena*.
- 1.3.3.10 The most abundant species were great crested grebe with a five-year peak count of 48 and a five-year mean of peaks of 26. The species was recoded in each of the five most recent years.
- 1.3.3.11 Red-necked grebe were recorded in two of the most recent years (2019/20 and 2020/21). They were recorded on one occasion in each of those two years and therefore have a five-year peak count and five-year mean of peaks of one.







Wader

- 1.3.3.12 A total of 22 wader species were recorded as present within tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area.
- 1.3.3.13 The most abundant species were consistent when comparing the five-year peak counts and five-year mean of peaks. In order this was knot (five-year peak count of 10,000 and five-year mean of peaks of 5,929), dunlin (2,635 and 1,444), sanderling (2,427 and 1,149) and oystercatcher (825 and 438).
- 1.3.3.14 Of note were sanderling, with peak counts of 2,427 and 1,560 in 2021/22 and 2022/23 respectively.

Gull and tern

- 1.3.3.15 A total of 16 gull and tern species were recorded within tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area over the most recent five years of Fylde Bird Club data. This comprised of nine gull species and six species of tern. It is noted that some of these species are rare visitors to the British Isles coast, for example the pelagic Sabine's gull *Xema sabini,* and Iceland gull *Larus glaucoides*.
- 1.3.3.16 The most abundant species were herring gull with a five-year peak count of 15,000 from 2021/22. This figure is significantly higher than any other across the five most recent years, with the second highest peak count being 1,000. The five-year mean of peaks for herring gull was 3,438.
- 1.3.3.17 Sandwich tern had a five-year peak count of 2,150 and a five-year mean of peaks of 772. The five-year peak, occurring in the 2021/22 year was significantly higher than other annual peaks, with the second highest being 830. This peak may have been a seawatch count of migrating birds.
- **1.3.3.18** Black-headed gull had a five-year peak count of 495 and a five-year mean of peaks of 245.
- 1.3.3.19 Kittiwake *Rissa tridactyla* had a five-year peak count of 429 and five-year mean of peaks of 186. Kittiwake were the third most abundant species. These are likely to have been recorded in flight on seawatches.
- 1.3.3.20 Arctic tern *Sterna paradisaea* had a five-year peak count of 354 and a fiveyear mean of peaks of 198. The most recent two years of complete data, 2021/22 and 2022/23, had peak counts that were significantly lower than the three years prior to this. This peak may have been a seawatch count of migrating birds.
- 1.3.3.21 Lesser black-backed gull had a five-year peak count of 212 and a five-year mean of peaks of 82. The two most recent years of data, 2021/22 and 2022/23, had peak counts that were much higher than the three years prior.
- 1.3.3.22 Common gull, common tern, little gull, great black-backed gull, little tern and Mediterranean gull were also recorded in each of the five most recent years on at least one occasion.
- 1.3.3.23 Black tern *Chlidonias niger*, Iceland gull, roseate tern *Sterna dougallii* and Sabine's gull were recorded at least one of the five most recent years of data.







Skua

- 1.3.3.24 Four species of skua were recorded within tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area.
- 1.3.3.25 Two species, Arctic skua *Stercorarius parasiticus* and great skua *Stercorarius skua* were recorded in each of the five most recent years. Arctic skua were the most abundant with a five-year peak count of nine and a five-year mean of peaks of six. Great skua had a five-year peak count of three and a five-year mean of peaks of two.
- 1.3.3.26 Pomarine skua *Stercorarius pomarinus* were recorded in 2018/19 and 2020/21 while long-tailed skua *Stercorarius longicaudus* were only recorded in 2020/21. Pomarine skua had a five-year peak count of three and a five-year mean of peaks of one. Long-tailed skua also had a five-year mean of peaks of one but the five-year peak for this species was one.
- 1.3.3.27 Most sightings of skuas are likely to have been of birds at sea, however skuas will sometimes forage over beach areas if there are lots of gulls present.

Seabird

- 1.3.3.28 A total of 10 species of seabird were recorded within tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area within the five most recent years of complete data.
- 1.3.3.29 The most abundant of these species was Manx shearwater *Puffinus puffinus* with a five-year peak count of 1,017 and a five-year mean of peaks of 617.
- 1.3.3.30 Gannet *Morus bassanus* were the second most abundant species with a fiveyear peak count of 947 and a five-year mean of peaks of 337. The peak count occurred in 2021/22, the second highest annual peak for this species was 320.
- 1.3.3.31 An annual peak count of 139 was made for guillemot *Uria aalge*, with a fiveyear mean of peaks of 87.
- 1.3.3.32 An annual peak count of 107 was made for razorbill *Alca torda*, with a fiveyear mean of peaks of 65.
- 1.3.3.33 In addition to the five seabird species above, fulmar *Fulmarus glacialis*, puffin *Fratercula arctica* and black guillemot *Cepphus grylle* were also recorded in each of the five most recent years. Other species recorded on at least one occasion across the five most recent years were little auk *Alle alle*, Balearic shearwater *Puffinus mauretanicus* and Leach's petrel *Hydrobates leucorhous*.

Diver

- 1.3.3.34 Three species of diver were recorded within tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area.
- 1.3.3.35 Both black-throated diver *Gavia arctica* and red-throated diver were recorded in each of the five most recent years. Great northern diver *Gavia immer* were recorded in three of the most recent five years, they were absent from the data set for 2018/19 and 2021/22.





1.3.3.36 The most abundant species were red-throated diver with a five-year peak count of 221 and a five-year mean of peaks of 132. This peak may have been a seawatch count of migrating birds. Black-throated diver and great northern diver each had a five-year peak count of one and a five-year mean of peaks of one.

Cormorant and shag

- 1.3.3.37 Cormorant and shag were both recorded in each of the five most recent years within tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area.
- 1.3.3.38 Shag *Gulosus aristotelis* were recorded with a five-year peak count of seven and a five-year mean of peaks of four.
- 1.3.3.39 Cormorant were significantly more abundant than shag with a five-year mean of peaks of 781 and a five-year peak count of 2,151. The second highest annual peak count was 851.

Herons and storks

- 1.3.3.40 Four species of heron and stork species were recorded within tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area in the five most recent complete years of Fylde Bird Club data.
- 1.3.3.41 Two species, little egret and grey heron, were recorded in each of the five most recent years. Little egret were the most abundant species with a five-year peak count of 21 and a five-year mean of peaks of 10. Grey heron had a five-year peak count of four and a five-year mean of peaks of three. It should be noted that low recorded numbers for this species may be due to the likelihood that not all observations of this BOCC5 UK green listed species were recorded.
- 1.3.3.42 Great white egret were recorded in the 2018/19 and 2019/20 years with one individual recorded in each of these two years. Therefore, the five-year peak count and five-year mean of peaks are both one.
- 1.3.3.43 White stork *Ciconia ciconia* were observed in one year, 2020/21, with one individual recorded. Therefore, the five-year peak count and five-year mean of peaks are both one.

Estuarine survey area

- 1.3.3.44 Following the data processing described in **section 1.2.5** above, a total of 41 species were recorded as present within tetrads overlapping with the estuarine survey area on at least one occasion during the most recent five years of complete data (2018/19 through to 2022/23).
- 1.3.3.45 Of the 41 species recorded the most abundant taxonomic groups by sum of five-year peak counts were gull and tern (3,827 individuals), geese, duck and swan (2,143 individuals) and wader (795 individuals) This order was maintained when considering the sum of five-year mean of peaks, gull and tern (2,246), geese, duck and swan (660) and wader (413). A total of 94 birds were also recorded from five additional taxonomic groups when summing





five-year peak counts. These species came from grebe, heron and stork, kingfisher, rail and cormorant and shag.

1.3.3.46 A short summary of the species present and abundance for each taxonomic group is provided below, with all species detailed and listed in **Table 1.9.**

Geese, duck and swan

- 1.3.3.47 A total of 12 species of goose, duck and swan were recorded in tetrads overlapping with the estuarine survey area on at least one occasion in the five most recent years of complete data.
- 1.3.3.48 The most abundant species were wigeon with a five-year peak count of 1,500 and a five-year mean of peaks of 404. It is noted that this peak count for wigeon was significantly higher than other counts for the species with 500 being the second highest peak.
- 1.3.3.49 Teal had a five-year peak count of 312 and a five-year mean of peaks of 113.
- 1.3.3.50 Mallard had a five-year peak count of 164 and a five-year mean of peaks of 68. The second highest annual peak count for mallard was 64. It should be noted that low recorded numbers for this species may be due to the likelihood that not all observations of this BOCC5 UK green listed species were recorded.
- 1.3.3.51 Shelduck had a five-year peak count of 51 and a five-year mean of peaks of 29.
- 1.3.3.52 Greylag goose were the fifth most abundant species with a five-year peak count of 50 and a five-year mean of peaks of 20.
- 1.3.3.53 Goosander were the only other species recorded in each of the five most recent years. Mute swan, pink-footed goose, whooper swan, barnacle goose, brent goose and red-breasted merganser were each recorded in at least one of the five most recent years but were also absent from the record in at least one year.

Rail, crake and coot

1.3.3.54 Moorhen were the only species from this taxonomic group to be recorded. They were noted in each of the five most recent years and had a five-year peak count of 10 and a five-year mean of peaks of seven.

Grebe

- 1.3.3.55 Two species of grebe were recorded in tetrads overlapping with the estuarine survey area on at least one occasion in the five most recent years of complete data.
- 1.3.3.56 Great crested grebe were recorded in each of the five most recent years and had a five-year peak count of six and five-year mean of peaks of four.
- 1.3.3.57 Little grebe were recorded in two years, 2018/19 and 2022/23. The five-year peak count was one.







Wader

- 1.3.3.58 A total of 15 wader species were recorded in tetrads overlapping with the estuarine survey area on at least one occasion in the five most recent years of complete data.
- 1.3.3.59 The most abundant species by five-year peak count were black-tailed godwit. However, the peak count of 1,200, occurring in the year 2018/19, was the only record of the species. There was no further record of the species in the four following years.
- 1.3.3.60 Lapwing were recorded in each of the five most recent years of data and had a five-year peak count of 190. The five-year mean of peaks for lapwing was 45. The peak count of 190 was significantly higher than peak counts of other years with the second highest count being 21.
- 1.3.3.61 Dunlin were recorded in three of the five most recent years. They were the third most abundant waders with a five-year peak count of 112 and a five-year mean of peaks of 23.
- 1.3.3.62 Golden plover were only recorded in the year 2018 to 2019 with a peak count of 100.
- 1.3.3.63 Oystercatcher were recorded in each of the five most recent years and had a five-year peak count of 61 and a five-year mean of peaks count of 22.
- 1.3.3.64 Curlew, redshank and common sandpiper were the only other species to be recorded in each of the five most recent years. Whimbrel, snipe, greenshank, ruff, ringed plover, little ringed plover and sanderling were also recorded but were absent in at least one of the five most recent years.

Cormorant and shag

1.3.3.65 One species of seabird was recorded in tetrads overlapping with the estuarine survey area on at least one occasion in the five most recent years of complete data, cormorant. The five-year peak count of cormorant was 45 and the five-year mean of peaks was 28.

Kingfisher

1.3.3.66 Kingfisher *Alcedo atthis* were recorded in each of the five most recent complete years of data. The five-year peak count for the species was two and the five-year mean of peaks was one.





Table 1.9:Fylde Bird Club ornithological individual species records (2018/19
through to 2022/23) in tetrads overlapping with the coastal survey area and
estuarine survey area

Taxonomic group	Species	Minimum five- year peak (2018/19 to 2022/23)	Maximum five- year peak (2018/19 to 2022/23)	Five-year mean of peaks (2018/19 to 2022/23)
Coastal survey a	area			
Geese, ducks and	Brent goose	1	5	3
swans	Canada goose	60	343	161
	Barnacle goose	0	8	3
	Greylag goose	3	41	20
	Pink-footed goose	790	4,569	1,992
	Mute swan	2	11	5
	Bewick's swan	0	1	0
	Whooper swan	77	235	128
	Shelduck	35	108	80
	Ruddy shelduck <i>Tadorna ferruginea</i>	0	4	1
	Garganey Spatula querquedula	0	2	0
	Shoveler	2	19	6
	Gadwall	0	8	4
	Wigeon	35	145	83
	Mallard	1	39	10
	Pintail	23	257	86
	Teal	18	104	43
	Pochard	0	1	0
	Tufted duck	2	6	3
	Scaup	0	4	1
	Eider	31	55	39
	Velvet scoter <i>Melanitta fusca</i>	1	2	1
	Common scoter	2,200	16,345	7,155
	Long-tailed duck <i>Clangula hyemalis</i>	1	2	2
	Goldeneye	0	5	2
	Goosander	1	5	3







Taxonomic group	Species	Minimum five- year peak (2018/19 to 2022/23)	Maximum five- year peak (2018/19 to 2022/23)	Five-year mean of peaks (2018/19 to 2022/23)
	Red-breasted merganser	7	16	10
Rails, crakes and coots	Moorhen	1	6	3
Grebes	Red-necked grebe	0	1	0
	Great crested grebe	10	48	26
Waders	Oystercatcher	107	825	437
	Avocet	0	1	0
	Lapwing	0	61	27
	Golden plover	4	85	27
	Grey plover	63	153	106
	Ringed plover	15	83	51
	Little ringed plover	0	1	0
	Whimbrel	17	27	21
	Curlew	14	90	45
	Bar-tailed godwit	6	236	129
	Black-tailed godwit	0	45	31
	Turnstone	10	107	51
	Knot	2,625	10,000	5929
	Ruff	0	1	0
	Sanderling	427	2,427	1,149
	Dunlin	613	2,635	1,444
	Purple sandpiper Calidris maritima	0	1	0
	Woodcock Scolopax rusticola	0	2	1
	Snipe	0	4	2
	Common sandpiper	0	2	1
	Redshank	24	99	48
	Greenshank	0	1	0
Gulls and terns	Kittiwake	40	429	186
	Sabine's gull	0	1	1
	Black-headed gull	46	495	245







Taxonomic group	Species	Minimum five- year peak (2018/19 to 2022/23)	Maximum five- year peak (2018/19 to 2022/23)	Five-year mean of peaks (2018/19 to 2022/23)
	Little gull	1	48	15
	Mediterranean gull	1	2	2
	Common gull	63	156	123
	Great black-backed gull	5	21	12
	Iceland gull	0	1	0
	Herring gull	60	15,000	3,437
	Lesser black- backed gull	20	212	82
	Sandwich tern	163	2,150	771
	Little tern	3	17	7
	Roseate tern Sterna dougallii	0	1	0
	Common tern	8	121	63
	Arctic tern	88	354	197
	Black tern	0	45	13
Skuas	Great skua	1	3	2
	Pomarine skua	0	3	1
	Arctic skua	4	9	6
	Long-tailed skua	0	1	0
Seabirds	Little auk	0	1	0
	Guillemot	38	139	87
	Razorbill	4	107	65
	Black guillemot	1	1	1
	Puffin	1	4	2
	Leach's petrel	0	11	5
	Fulmar	1	32	10
	Manx shearwater	365	1,017	617
	Balearic shearwater	0	1	0
	Gannet	74	947	336
Divers	Red-throated diver	64	221	132
	Black-throated diver	1	1	1
	Great northern diver	0	1	1







Taxonomic group	Species	Minimum five- year peak (2018/19 to 2022/23)	Maximum five- year peak (2018/19 to 2022/23)	Five-year mean of peaks (2018/19 to 2022/23)
Cormorants and	Cormorant	219	2,151	780
snag	Shag	1	7	4
Herons and stork	Little egret	2	21	10
	Grey heron	2	4	3
	Great white egret	0	1	0
	White stork	0	1	0
Estuarine surve	y area	-		
Geese, ducks and	Brent goose	0	1	0
swans	Barnacle goose	0	1	0
	Greylag goose	1	50	20
	Pink-footed goose	0	12	3
	Mute swan	0	21	6
	Whooper swan	0	10	3
	Shelduck	10	51	29
	Wigeon	1	1,500	404
	Mallard	12	164	67
	Teal	9	312	113
	Goosander	9	20	13
	Red-breasted merganser	0	1	0
Rails, crakes and coot	Moorhen	6	10	7
Grebes	Great crested grebe	1	6	4
	Little grebe	0	1	0
Waders	Oystercatcher	4	61	22
	Lapwing	1	190	45
	Golden plover	0	100	20
	Ringed plover	0	2	1
	Little ringed plover	0	1	0
	Whimbrel	0	35	17
	Curlew	2	50	23
	Black-tailed godwit	0	1,200	240





Taxonomic group	Species	Minimum five- year peak (2018/19 to 2022/23)	Maximum five- year peak (2018/19 to 2022/23)	Five-year mean of peaks (2018/19 to 2022/23)
	Ruff	0	5	1
	Sanderling	0	1	0
	Dunlin	0	112	23
	Common sandpiper	1	7	4
	Redshank	3	20	12
	Greenshank	0	5	2
	Snipe	0	6	2
Cormorants and shag	Cormorant	19	45	28
Kingfishers	Kingfisher	1	2	1

1.3.4 Fylde-sand extraction-Golder Associates UK Ltd

1.3.4.1 A total of 23 bird species were recorded during the wintering bird surveys. Sanderling, grey plover, dunlin and knot were recorded in notable numbers. Sanderling distribution ranged throughout the survey area and up to 2,500 individuals were recorded foraging along the shoreline. The highest numbers of grey plover, knot and dunlin mainly occurred during periods of low tide near the mouth of the Ribble Estuary.

1.3.5 Morecambe Offshore Windfarm-Fylde export cable route

- 1.3.5.1 Intertidal waterbird surveys were conducted by Avian Ecology Ltd. between October 2021 and April 2022.
- 1.3.5.2 During the vantage point surveys a high level of activity was noted in nearshore waters with flocks of common scoter exceeding 1,000 individuals noted between 1 km and 2 km from the coastline. The most abundant intertidal species were sanderling with a peak count of 172 individuals. Additional species noted were pintail, great crested grebe, red-throated diver, cormorant, oystercatcher, ringed plover, curlew, knot, dunlin, turnstone, redshank, black-headed gull, common gull, kittiwake, herring gull, great black-backed gull, lesser black-backed gull and gannet. Many of the seabird records were noted as foraging in the nearshore waters.
- 1.3.5.3 The nocturnal surveys indicated that the usage of the shoreline and intertidal habitats by bird species was lower than during daylight hours. A total of five species were recorded with sanderling being the most common with a peak count of 25 individuals. The other species recorded were oystercatcher, ringed plover, redshank and one unidentified gull species.





1.4 Site-specific surveys – baseline characterisation

1.4.1 Coastal survey area

- 1.4.1.1 Site-specific surveys within the coastal survey area aimed to characterise the waterbird usage (i.e., abundance and distribution) of the supratidal, intertidal and subtidal habitats below HAT.
- 1.4.1.2 Diurnal and nocturnal surveys use a 'through-the-tidal-cycle count' survey methodology. Diurnal surveys were undertaken twice per month, with visits between September 2021 and August 2023 (**Table 1.10**). Nocturnal surveys were undertaken monthly over the wintering periods only (November 2021 to March 2022 and November 2022 to March 2023).
- **1.4.1.3** A summary of the nocturnal and diurnal survey methodology is provided in **section 1.4.3** and the detailed methodologies can be found in Volume 3. Annex 4.4: Onshore and intertidal ornithology survey methodologies (document reference F3.4.4).

1.4.2 Estuarine survey area

- 1.4.2.1 Site-specific surveys aimed to characterise the waterbird usage (i.e., abundance and distribution) of the intertidal habitats along the River Ribble that the 400 kV grid connection cable will pass under.
- 1.4.2.2 Diurnal surveys use a 'through-the-tidal-cycle' survey methodology. Diurnal surveys were undertaken twice per month, with reported visits undertaken between October 2022 and March 2024 (**Table 1.10**). These surveys have been continued until September 2024 with results between April and September 2024 being available post application. No nocturnal surveys were undertaken within the estuarine survey area.

Survey area	Species surveyed	Survey methodology	Survey frequency	Survey visits
Coastal survey area	Seabirds and waterbirds	Diurnal, through-the-tidal-cycle, counts (full tidal cycle) from vantage points	Twice monthly	48 visits (September 2021 to August 2023)
		Nocturnal, through-the-tidal- cycle, counts (half tidal cycle) from vantage points	Monthly	9 visits (November 2021 to April 2022 and November 2022 to March 2023).
Estuarine study area	Waterbirds	Diurnal, through-the-tidal-cycle, counts (full tidal cycle) from vantage points.	Twice monthly	48 visits (October 2022 to March 2023 and October 2023 to March 2024)

Table 1.10: Summary of site-specific surveys





1.4.3 Survey methodology

Through-the-tidal-cycle count diurnal surveys

- 1.4.3.1 The programme comprised of a series of monthly intertidal and nearshore coastal waterbird surveys undertaken from vantage points located on the upper shore or the bank of the estuary (vantage point locations are displayed on the results maps, **Figure 1.8** to **Figure 1.97**).
- 1.4.3.2 The methodology followed accepted industry standard practice, using through-the-tidal-cycle counts to characterise bird usage over the course of a tidal cycle and is based on a methodology developed and recommended by Armitage et al. (2002). All survey methodologies were agreed in writing with Natural England.
- 1.4.3.3 Through-the-tidal-cycle counts have been undertaken for both the coastal survey area and the estuarine survey area, with the same methodology being used across both survey areas.
- 1.4.3.4 Surveys of the coastal survey area commenced in September 2021 and continued twice a month until August 2023. Surveys of the estuarine survey area commenced in October 2022 and continued until September 2024 (although only estuarine results up to March 2024 are presented within this ES).
- 1.4.3.5 The surveys were scheduled to cover a range of times of day and different tidal conditions (high, low, ebb and flow). Each month a count of all waterbirds present was made once per hour during the full tidal cycle period of 12 hours (-6 hrs to +5 hrs relative to low tide). This was split into two visits of six hours to reduce the impact of observer fatigue. As weather, or number of birds could impact upon the ability to make hourly counts, a minimum of four counts were undertaken per month to categorise the usage across the four tidal states (high tide, ebb tide, low tide and flood tide).
- 1.4.3.6 The surveyor mapped species and number of individuals from VPs along the coast or estuary using binoculars and a telescope. Bird behaviour, i.e., whether individuals are foraging or non-foraging (i.e., roosting, loafing etc) was also recorded. Spatial coverage of the diurnal surveys was 100%.
- 1.4.3.7 Weather conditions including wind speed (using the Beaufort Scale), cloud cover (estimated as eighths or octas of the sky) and visibility were also recorded.
- 1.4.3.8 Any source of disturbance to the birds at the time of the count was recorded under the following categories: walkers, dogs, anglers, bait diggers, shell fishers, vehicles, unpowered boats, powered boats, aircraft and 'other'. The perceived effect of disturbance on abundance and behaviour of birds in the count section is scaled according to the following categories **Table 1.11**.





Table 1.11: Perceived effect of disturbance on abundance and behaviour of birds

Definition of effect	Notation
Weak e.g., change in behaviour, but birds not excluded	W
Moderate e.g., birds excluded from parts of the recording sector	Μ
Strong e.g., avoidance of the recording sector	s

Through-the-tidal-cycle nocturnal surveys

- 1.4.3.9 For the coastal survey area, a programme of nocturnal surveys has been undertaken between November 2021 and April 2022 and November 2023 and March 2024. The survey methodology used through-the-tidal-cycle counts to characterise bird usage over the course of a tidal cycle. The survey methodology has been developed for the site-specific surveys, but it uses some key principles from Armitage *et al.* (2002).
- 1.4.3.10 Whilst similar to the diurnal through-the-tidal-cycle surveys, the nocturnal through-the-tidal-cycle counts were undertaken on a reduced intensity (i.e., up to three counts over half a tidal cycle) and reduced survey area due to the technical limitations of using nocturnal equipment (thermal monocular and infra-red camcorders) versus daytime optical equipment (binoculars and scopes).
- 1.4.3.11 Due to the more limited range of nocturnal equipment, only the first 500 m of the intertidal zone (from MHWS) was surveyed. Each monthly through-the-tidal-cycle count was undertaken across a half tidal cycle of approximately 6 hrs (versus a full tidal cycle of approximately 12 hrs), equating to one visit per month.
- 1.4.3.12 The frequency of counts was adapted to the amount of bird activity in the section and survey effort required to effectively use nocturnal equipment. During a period of high level of activity, the frequency of counts over half tidal cycle was reduced from three to two (i.e., high or low and mid). Working in pairs, one observer located birds using a thermal monocular (e.g., Pulsar Axion XM30S or the Pulsar Quantum HD50S), whilst the second observer videoed and identified species or groups using an image-intensifying camera (or camcorder) coupled with an infra-red spotlight. This approach allowed the detection and identification of most waterbird species within 400 m from the observer's position.
- 1.4.3.13 The position of the birds was directly mapped using BTO codes (BTO, 2023) or alternatively marked with a labelled symbol and subsequently cross referenced to a data field form. Behaviour was recorded as foraging (actively looking for food) and non-foraging.
- 1.4.3.14 Ideally 10 survey visits would have been carried out during the November to March periods between 2021 and 2023. However, both periods of strong wind and precipitation, even slight rain, can interfere with nocturnal equipment and therefore surveys were planned to avoid these weather conditions as so far as possible. Inclement weather led to one survey being







carried out outside of the November to March period during the 2021/22 winter, and one survey being missed during the 2023/24 winter.

1.4.4 Mapping count data

- 1.4.4.1 Average bird density maps were produced for the most abundant waterbird species using biological seasons for each bird species group, as defined in **Table 1.12**.
- 1.4.4.2 All point data was firstly entered into an ArcGIS database complete with species, counts of birds and behaviour. A 5 ha grid was then overlain on the survey areas and all counts of birds recorded over the total survey period were averaged per season (i.e., breeding and non-breeding). This gave the mean number of birds (in birds per ha) present in any 5 ha square over the coastal survey area. Grid squares where no birds were recorded were left transparent.
- 1.4.4.3 Maps showing the seasonal distribution are presented in **Figure 1.8** to **Figure 1.47**.



Table 1.12: Table showing biological season of taxonomic groups recorded within the survey area

Taxonom	August	Septemb	October	Novembe r	Decembe r	January	February	March	April	Мау	June	July
Geese duck and swan												
Wader												
Gull and tern												
Seabird												
Diver												
Cormorant and shag												

Key

Non-breeding

Breeding

Core wintering

Passage (autumn and spring)







1.4.5 Site-specific survey results

 1.4.5.1 Peak monthly counts of all species can be found in Table 1.15 and Table
 1.16 in Appendix A. These data have been used to inform Volume 4. Chapter 3: Onshore and Intertidal Ornithology of the Environmental Statement (document reference F3.4) and the Habitats Regulations
 Assessment Stage 2 Information to Support an Appropriate Assessment – Part 3: Special Protection Areas and Ramsar site assessments (document reference E2.3C), so are provided here for transparency.

Coastal survey area results

Conservation status

- 1.4.5.2 A total of 35 waterbird species were recorded within the coastal survey area over the survey period (**Table 1.13**). Wader species were well represented with a total of twelve species. There were one skua, seven gull and three tern species. There were also three seaduck species, one diver and one grebe. The rest of the species were infrequently recorded seabirds (including auks) and geese.
- 1.4.5.3 Several species recorded during the survey are listed as Annex 1 species of the Birds Directive: golden plover, bar-tailed godwit, Manx shearwater, sandwich tern, common tern, little tern, Mediterranean gull, red-throated diver and little egret. Whimbrel, Mediterranean gull, red-throated diver and common scoter, also recorded during the survey are listed under Schedule 1 species of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.
- 1.4.5.4 Curlew, herring gull, cormorant and common scoter, recorded during the survey, are listed under Section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. A total of nine species are red-listed in the BOCC5 UK and 19 species are amber-listed in the BOCC5 UK.

Taxonomic group and species accounts

Geese, ducks and swans

- 1.4.5.5 Two bar-headed geese were seen in June 2023 (**Table 1.13**). Bar-headed goose is not accepted as a naturally occurring British species (British Ornithologists Union, 2023) and these birds are likely escapees from a private collection.
- 1.4.5.6 A single shelduck was seen in both breeding seasons (**Table 1.13**).
- 1.4.5.7 Four scaup were seen in the nearshore waters during February 2023 but not seen again.
- 1.4.5.8 Eider were seen during both October and November 2022 with a peak of five birds in October 2022 (**Table 1.13**).
- 1.4.5.9 Common scoter were widely distributed across the nearshore waters, although the birds favoured the nearshore waters in the northern part of the coastal survey area during the non-breeding season (Figure 1.8). A peak count of 4,000 birds was recorded in August 2022 (Table 1.13, Figure 1.9)



with the count presumably composed of migratory birds as well as returning overwintering birds to the Liverpool Bay area.

1.4.5.10 There was a further peak of 3,934 in January 2023. In total common scoter were present in numbers exceeding the Great Britain (GB) threshold of national importance (1,300) on three out of the 24 months.



Diagram 1.1: Monthly peak maximum count of common scoter

Waders

- 1.4.5.11 Oystercatcher were present year around albeit with a larger overwintering population (November to March) which peaked during the first winter in January 2022 with up to 822 birds (**Table 1.13, Diagram 1.2**) and February 2023 with 1,073 birds. Up to 136 birds were recorded during the passage periods as birds migrate to/from their Icelandic breeding grounds. Oystercatcher were widely distributed across the coastal survey area with slightly higher densities recorded at both the north and the south of the survey area during the winter period (**Figure 1.10**) and slightly higher densities concentrated in the middle of the coastal survey area during the passage periods (**Figure 1.11**).
- 1.4.5.12 Although a regular feature of the coastal survey area, oystercatcher were not present in nationally significant numbers.









Diagram 1.2: Monthly peak maximum count of oystercatcher

- 1.4.5.13 One golden plover was recorded within the coastal survey area in November 2021 (**Table 1.13**).
- 1.4.5.14 There was a small overwintering population of grey plover in the coastal survey area peaking at 62 birds in both November 2021 and February 2023 (Table 1.13, Diagram 1.3). The passage peak was much higher peaking at 118 in April 2022 although they were absent during all other passage months barring September 2022 when one bird was present. Grey plover were mostly distributed in the southern part of the coastal survey area (Figure 1.12 and Figure 1.13).







Diagram 1.3: Monthly peak maximum count of grey plover

- 1.4.5.15 Ringed plover were present during both the winter and the passage periods normally peaking anywhere between two and 37 birds (Table 1.13, Diagram 1.4). The exception to this was during August 2023 when a peak of 93 birds was recorded.
- 1.4.5.16 The Ribble and Alt Estuaries SPA is of international importance to passage ringed plover and it is likely that these were post-breeding birds returning to their wintering grounds. There were higher densities of ringed plover found roosting on the upper beach just south of the centre of the coastal survey area (**Figure 1.14** and **Figure 1.15**).









Diagram 1.4: Monthly peak maximum count of ringed plover

- 1.4.5.17 Four whimbrels were recorded in April 2022 and a further six whimbrels were recorded in May 2023 (**Table 1.13**) when they migrate to their breeding grounds in northern Scotland and Iceland. Whimbrel were not recorded at any other point during the survey period.
- 1.4.5.18 Curlew were present in low numbers through the wintering and passage periods (**Table 1.13**, **Diagram 1.5**) with a peak of nine birds present during the first winter period (2021/22). This dropped to just one bird for the second winter period (2022/23). As the result, individuals were thinly distributed across the coastal survey area (**Figure 1.16** and **Figure 1.17**).









Diagram 1.5: Monthly peak maximum count of curlew

- 1.4.5.19 Bar-tailed godwit peaked during November in both winter periods with 625 during 2021/22 and 500 during 2022/23 (the 2022/23 peak was recorded at night, see **Table 1.13, Diagram 1.5**).
- 1.4.5.20 Birds were found in highest densities to the southern part of the coastal survey area during the winter period whilst the highest densities were found at the centre of the survey area during the passage period (**Figure 1.18** and **Figure 1.19**). During both seasons the birds were generally found at higher densities around the low tide period. Occasionally birds were found roosting on the upper beach at night-time.
- 1.4.5.21 Bar-tailed godwit were present in numbers equalling or exceeding the GB national threshold (500 birds) during both winter periods. The GB threshold of national importance is 1 %, or more, of the estimated British population.







Diagram 1.6: Monthly peak maximum count of bar-tailed godwit

- 1.4.5.22 Turnstone were observed to winter in the coastal survey area and peaked at 142 birds during the 2021/22 winter (February peak) and 143 birds during the 2022/23 winter (January peak) (**Table 1.13**, **Diagram 1.7**), although they were much less frequent during the second winter.
- 1.4.5.23 The highest densities were found at the northern part of the coastal survey area near Blackpool where turnstone were regularly observed roosting on the sea defences (**Figure 1.20** and **Figure 1.21**) although smaller numbers of birds were recorded foraging on the sandflats, often with other small waders.









Diagram 1.7: Monthly peak maximum count of turnstone

1.4.5.24 Knot were recorded sporadically and in low numbers within the coastal survey area (**Figure 1.22** and **Figure 1.23**). Peak counts of 370 birds and 300 birds were recorded during December 2022 and March 2023 respectively (**Table 1.13, Diagram 1.8**). Reports from surveyors indicate that the muddy area between the coastal survey area and the Ribble estuary, holds large numbers of knot but that they are infrequent visitors to the sandier substrates in the coastal survey area.







Diagram 1.8: Monthly peak maximum count of knot

- 1.4.5.25 Sanderling were one of the most frequently recorded waders and in the highest numbers (**Table 1.13**, **Diagram 1.9**). Sanderling favour intertidal sandflats to feed and congregated in large roosts on the mid to upper shore during tidal compression. Whilst there was a notable peak count of 4,702 individuals in February 2022, there were also large counts recorded during the passage period, with 2,134 in April 2022 and peaks of 2,000 birds during the second winter period in both January and February 2023.
- 1.4.5.26 Sanderling were evenly distributed across the coastal survey area in winter (**Figure 1.24**) and during the passage period (**Figure 1.25**).
- 1.4.5.27 Sanderling were present in numbers exceeding the GB threshold of national importance (200 birds) during 15 of the 24 months surveyed and they were present in internationally important numbers (2,000 birds) on four of the 24 months surveyed.









Diagram 1.9: Monthly peak maximum count of sanderling

- 1.4.5.28 Dunlin were present mostly during the winter period with the exception of April (**Diagram 1.10**). Whilst a maximum peak of 4,200 individuals was recorded in February 2022, numbers were sporadic over the winter.
- 1.4.5.29 The greatest densities were recorded at the southern part of the coastal survey area (**Figure 1.26**). Distribution was more restricted during the passage period (**Figure 1.27**) with less of a spread across the coastal survey area when compared to the winter records.
- 1.4.5.30 Dunlin were present in numbers exceeding the GB national threshold of 3,400 birds, although this was just once in February 2022 with much lower numbers recorded during the second winter (2022/23). Surveyors reported higher numbers of dunlin in the muddy substratum to the south of the coastal survey area.







Diagram 1.10: Monthly peak maximum count of dunlin

- 1.4.5.31 Redshank were recorded in the highest numbers during the winter period with low numbers of birds recorded during the autumn and spring passage periods (**Diagram 1.11**). A peak of 70 birds was recorded during the first winter (January). Lower numbers of birds were recorded during the second winter with a peak of 33 birds in February 2023.
- 1.4.5.32 The species was distributed in low densities across the coastal survey area although they were occasionally found roosting on the sea defences with the turnstone (**Figure 1.28** and **Figure 1.29**).









Diagram 1.11: Monthly peak maximum count of redshank

Gulls and terns

- 1.4.5.33 The site-specific surveys produced sightings of kittiwake in the summer months, with a monthly peak maximum count of four individuals in July 2022 (**Table 1.13**).
- 1.4.5.34 Although frequently recorded during the breeding and non-breeding seasons, black-headed gull were more abundant during the non-breeding season (**Table 1.13**, **Diagram 1.12**). Black-headed gull breed on inland waterbodies and the non-breeding peak in the coastal survey area represents British breeders and European birds migrating to coastal areas to winter.
- 1.4.5.35 The first winter peak count was recorded in February 2022 with 877 individuals (**Table 1.13**), with lower numbers recorded using the survey area over the second winter with a peak of 620.
- 1.4.5.36 Black-headed gull were widely distributed across the costal survey area during the non-breeding (**Figure 1.30**) and breeding season (**Figure 1.31**).







Diagram 1.12: Monthly peak maximum count of black-headed gull

- 1.4.5.37 One Mediterranean gull was recorded in December 2021 (**Table 1.13**). This was the only record of this species.
- 1.4.5.38 Common gull followed similar temporal variation to that of black-headed gull (**Diagram 1.13**) although with a higher maximum peak of 750 birds was recorded during the second winter period (**Table 1.13**). This species was widely distributed across the coastal survey area during the non-breeding season (**Figure 1.32**).








Diagram 1.13: Monthly peak maximum count of common gull

- 1.4.5.39 Although great black-backed gull were frequently recorded throughout the survey period they were recorded in low numbers. A monthly peak maximum count of 23 individuals was recorded.
- 1.4.5.40 Low densities of great black-backed gull were recorded throughout the coastal survey area (**Figure 1.34** and **Figure 1.35**) meaning that they were mobile.









Diagram 1.14: Monthly peak maximum count of great black-backed gull

- 1.4.5.41 Herring gull were present as both a non-breeding and a breeding species (**Diagram 1.15**). Herring gull also breed in the nearby town of Blackpool. During the breeding season the peak maximum count of 1,543 birds was recorded in May 2022. During the non-breeding season, a peak of 1,600 was recorded in November 2022 (**Table 1.13**).
- 1.4.5.42 Herring gull were widely distributed across the survey area during the breeding (**Figure 1.37**) and the non-breeding season (**Figure 1.36**).









Diagram 1.15: Monthly peak maximum count of herring gull

- 1.4.5.43 Contrary to herring gull and common gull, lesser black-backed gull were predominantly present during the April to August period with a peak of 353 recorded in August 2022 (**Diagram 1.6**). Low numbers were recorded over winter. This species breeds locally with a Ribble and Alt Estuaries SPA colony located on the saltmarshes of the Ribble, and winter along the Atlantic seaboard southward from Britain to West Africa, with most in Iberia.
- 1.4.5.44 As with other gulls, the species was widely distributed across the coastal survey area (**Figure 1.38** and **Figure 1.39**).









Diagram 1.16: Monthly peak maximum count of lesser black-backed gull

- 1.4.5.45 The monthly peak maximum count of sandwich tern was 427 individuals in August 2023 (**Table 1.13**) with individuals presumably dispersing from colonies and using the coastal survey area to feed or rest (**Diagram 1.17**).
- 1.4.5.46 The species was thinly distributed across the nearshore waters of the coastal survey area (**Figure 1.40** and **Figure 1.41**) with the peak representing a midbeach roost, likely on migration.









Diagram 1.17: Monthly peak maximum count of sandwich tern

- 1.4.5.47 Common tern were observed between June and July 2022 and between April and August 2023 with a peak 90 birds observed in August 2023 (**Table 1.13**, **Diagram 1.8**). Whilst there is a local Ribble colony, the August peak is probably composed of birds dispersing from colonies further north. During the core common tern breeding period (April to July), low numbers of birds were observed foraging in the nearshore waters.
- 1.4.5.48 Little tern were observed in very low numbers throughout the breeding season, with sightings made in May 2022 and June 2022. As the coastal survey area is well beyond the 5 km (as taken from Woodward, *et al*, 2019) foraging ranges for nearby (e.g., the Gronant Dunes) colonies, the peak count of one individual was presumably a non-breeder or failed breeder dispersing from colonies in the region (**Table 1.13**).









Diagram 1.18: Monthly peak maximum count of common tern

Auks

1.4.5.49 A single guillemot was recorded in August 2022, December 2022 and April 2023. Three birds were recorded in July 2023 (**Table 1.13**).

Divers

1.4.5.50 Red-throated diver were present in the nearshore waters infrequently in low numbers. More birds were seen during the second year of surveys with a peak of 14 in September 2023 (**Table 1.13**, **Diagram 1.19**).







Diagram 1.19: Monthly peak maximum count of red-throated diver

Seabirds

1.4.5.51 Manx shearwater were recorded once in July 2023 where 77 birds were seen foraging in the nearshore waters.

Cormorants and shag

- 1.4.5.52 Aggregations of cormorant were regularly seen exhibiting non-foraging (e.g., preening) behaviour on the intertidal sandflats during the breeding and nonbreeding season (**Diagram 1.20**). There was a maximum peak count of 112 individuals recorded in December 2022 (**Table 1.13**).
- 1.4.5.53 The greatest densities were recorded at the southern part of the coastal survey area (**Figure 1.46** and **Figure 1.47**) with surveyors reporting that numbers were higher further to the south of the coastal survey area.









Diagram 1.20: Monthly peak maximum count of cormorant

Herons and storks

- 1.4.5.54 Grey heron were only recorded once. The single bird was sighted in October 2022 on the shore line to the south of the coastal survey area.
- 1.4.5.55 A total of four little egret were recorded within the coastal survey area with a peak in October 2022.



Table 1.13: Annual peak abundance of waterbirds recorded in the coastal survey area during the site-specific surveys(September 2021 to August 2023)

Group	Species	UK BOCC5 status	Annex 1 listed	Schedule 1 listed	Section 41 listed	Peak maximum count 2021/22	Peak maximum count 2022/23
Geese, ducks and	Bar-headed goose	No status	no	no	no	0	2
swans	Shelduck	Amber	no	no	no	One (May)	One (October, May, June)
	Scaup	Red	no	yes	no	0	Four (February)
	Eider	Amber	no	no	no	0	Five (October)
	Common scoter	Red	no	yes	yes	4,000 (August)	3,934 (January)
Grebes	Great crested grebe	Green	no	no	no	0	Two (September, February, March)
Waders	Oystercatcher	Amber	no	no	no	822 (January)	1073 (February)
	Golden plover	Green	yes	no	no	One (November)	0 (April)
	Grey plover	Amber	no	no	no	118 (April)	62 (February)
	Ringed plover	Red	no	no	no	37 (February)	93 (August)
	Whimbrel	Red	no	yes	no	Four (April)	Six (May)
	Curlew	Red	no	no	yes	Nine (December)	One (October, December, January)







Group	Species	UK BOCC5 status	Annex 1 listed	Schedule 1 listed	Section 41 listed	Peak maximum count 2021/22	Peak maximum count 2022/23
	Bar-tailed godwit	Amber	yes	no	no	625 (November)	500 (November)
	Turnstone	Amber	no	no	no	142 (February)	143 (January)
	Knot	Amber	no	no	no	370 (December)	300 (December, March)
	Sanderling	Amber	no	no	no	4,702 (February)	2,000 (January, February)
	Dunlin	Red	no	no	no	4,200 (February)	677 (March)
	Redshank	Amber	no	no	no	70 (January)	33 (February)
Gulls and terns	Kittiwake	Red	no	no	no	Two (July)	0
	Black-headed gull	Amber	no	no	no	877 (February)	620 (January)
	Mediterranean gull	Amber	yes	yes	no	One (December)	0
	Common gull	Red	no	no	no	438 (January, February)	750 (January)
	Great black-backed gull	Red	no	no	no	17 (September)	23 (December)
	Herring gull	Red	no	no	yes	1,543 (May)	1,600 (November)
	Lesser black- backed gull	Amber	no	no	no	353 (August)	210 (June)







Group	Species	UK BOCC5 status	Annex 1 listed	Schedule 1 listed	Section 41 listed	Peak maximum count 2021/22	Peak maximum count 2022/23
	Sandwich tern	Amber	yes	no	no	84 (July)	427 (August)
	Little tern	Amber	yes	no	no	One (July)	0
	Common tern	Amber	yes	no	no	29 (June)	90 (August)
Skuas	Arctic skua	Red	no	no	no	0	Three (August)
Auks	Guillemot	Amber	no	no	no	One (August)	Three (July)
Divers	Red-throated diver	Green	yes	yes	no	Six (August)	14 (September)
Seabirds	Manx shearwater	Amber	yes	no	no	0	77 (July)
Cormorants and shag	Cormorant	Green	no	no	yes	14 (August)	112 (December)
Herons and storks	Grey heron	Green	no	no	no	0	One (October)
	Little egret	Green	yes	no	no	Two (June)	Four (October)













Figure 1.9: Distribution of common scoter during the breeding season









Figure 1.10: Distribution of oystercatcher in winter











Figure 1.11: Distribution of oystercatcher during passage







			3		1
		Bla	ckpool		1
-			1	17	T
4	-	1	The	4.	*
10		-			1
F			-		
TF		0	Southpo	rt	- 24
	LE	GEND			
E		Tra	nsmissio	on	
E	-	Ass	ets Ord	er	
THE P	-	and	Intertid	al	
1:		Infra	astructu	re A	rea
	C	Coa	stal sur	vey	
1	0	area	a rtidel \//	Do	
	NA-		encity	S	12
				peri	id
			1-0.02		
-	F		2 - 0.02		
		0.04	4 - 0.08		
	Ē	0.08	3 - 0.10		
alor		0.10) - 0.20		
-		0.20	0 - 0.40		
H					
I					
Part					
11-1-12					
AL					
Carlo Carlo					
Y					
X					
3					
D'S					
all of					
ALL B					
1)					
AN COL					
B	-	1	00000		
S	L	IN	IOREC	AN	1BE
		C-F	bp		10
H		Partiers is ()		A TETMA THEN C	
5.0			Figure 1.11	1	
0	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		
E C	-	120	093-0224	-03	
GS,	03	DATE 19/09/24	FINAL	BY AC	JB



Figure 1.12: Distribution of grey plover in winter









Figure 1.13: Distribution of grey plover during passage





いい			3 -		
うち		Bla	ckpool		21
1		0	1		1
Ę	-	1	The	4.	*
da		-			
E					
TF		0	Southpo	ort	- 12
	LE	GEND			
E		Tra	nsmissi	on	
IE	-	Ass	ets Orc	ler	
THE R	-	and	Intertio	lal	
1:		Infra	astructu	ire A	rea
	C	Coa	astal su	rvey	
1	0	area	a	De	
			onsitu	rs ner l	10
	IVI			peri	Id
11			1 - 0.07		
-	F		2 - 0.02		
		0.04	4 - 0.08		
	Ē	0.08	3 - 0.10		
101		0.10	0 - 0.20		
THE REAL					
THE					
E B					
M					
1 A					
SHE I					
P.					
P					
Ye					
K					
X					
V I FIL					
E C					
3					
A.					
X		-6.			
2	-	IN			IBE NERGY
н	_	En	BW 🍅	CP	S
G		Peribece-D ()	R offering unit	A TETTA TIEN O	C. MARKET
	Dra	wina Nue	Figure 1.1:	3	-
3/11/2	Jid	12	693-0224	-03	
田	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
38,	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB



Figure 1.14: Distribution of ringed plover in winter







			3		1
		Bla	ckpool		-
-		0	1	1	-
1	-	2	The	4.	*
10		-			1
F			-	K	
15		0	Southpo	rt	- 22
	LE	GEND			
AL		Tra	nsmissio	on	
IE	-	Ass	ets Ord	er	
	-	and	Intertid	al	
1		Infra	astructu	re A	rea
-	C	Coa	astal sur	vey	
-	C	Inte	a Itidal VI	De	
	M	ean D	ensity	oer H	าล
_		0.00	0 - 0.01		
		0.02	2 - 0.04		
		0.04	4 - 0.08		
		0.08	3 - 0.10		
10/0					
Provent series					
E					
A					
- Alt					
SUR.					
Sel la					
all a					
X					
2 C					
AN AN					
A.					
	5				
D'S					
TO DE	-				
ALC ALC					
	-				
×		TN	OREC	AN	1BF
20	-	- 0		OTATION E	NERGY
H	-	-Eng	3W 🔘	CP	S
C		Pariferni S (Figure 1.14	A TETRA TIEN C	Owners
6	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	-	- 1
		12	693-0224	-03	24
GS.	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
					1 H



Figure 1.15: Distribution of ringed plover during passage





			1		1
		Bla	ckpool		10
10202		0	1	-	4
fin	1	1	·	100	1=
	-	4			P.
3				- 17	
E IL		0	Southpo	rt	
ial	LE	GEND	2		-
		Tro	oomiaai		
るの	-	Acc	ote Ord	or	
RE	-		its: Ons	hore	
18	-	and	Intertid	al	
-{:		Infra	astructu	re Ar	ea
	-	Coa	astal sur	vev	
+ -	-	area	а		
-) Inte	rtidal VI	S	
	M	ean D	ensity	oer h	na
_		700	0-0.01		
			1 - 0.02		
/			- 0.02		
		0.02	2 - 0.04		
		0.10	J - 0.20		
Balon Bahr					
F					
3					
图旧					
ADA.					
8					
A					
N.					
X					
3X	1				
94					
Ba					
and					
×					
A C					
		4			
ST.		N	IOREC	AN	IBE
/	2	0	bp	OTATION E	NERGY
СН	-	-Eng	3W 🜔	FP	5
G	-	Bindeninkie w. Li	Figure 1.15		
20	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	_	
		12	693-0224-	-03	
	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
USGS,	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB



Figure 1.16: Distribution of curlew in winter











Figure 1.17: Distribution of curlew during passage











Figure 1.18: Distribution of bar-tailed godwit in winter















Figure 1.19: Distribution of bar-tailed godwit during passage





Figure 1.20: Distribution of turnstone in winter











Figure 1.21: Distribution of turnstone during passage







					1
0		Bla	ckpool		- 61
55202		0	it	-	4
In		1	2	an.	1-
Te	-	4			
NA IN					23
A					
P		0	Southpo	rt	1
fall	LE	GEND	-		
		T			
词思		Aco	nsmissio	on	
RE	F	Lim	ite One	hore	
- B	-	and	Intertid	al	
-1:		Infra	astructu	re Ar	rea
		Coa	astal sur	vev	
+ +		area	a	,	
1	C	Inte	rtidal VI	S	
	M	ean D	ensity	ner H	na
	IVI			Jeil	a
	-		- 0.01		
-	L	0.0	1 - 0.02		
		0.20	0 - 0.40		
10/05					
25					
照旧					
	1				
S. E					
24					
ALC: C					
EA!					
Y	1				
A					
SC					
XX					
3H					
33					
ALC:					
Pos					
(A)					
1 AL					
A B	-				
	1	1			
ST)		M	IOREC	AN	IBE
	>	0	cobra 🔃 FL	OTATION E	NERGY
СН	-	Eng	8W 🌔	rp	5
4		. Tanana in u	Figure 1.21	· TETRA TREM C	-78311
0	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		-
Call of the	-10	12	593-0224	-03	
		120	000-0224	00	-
USGS	03	DATE 19/09/24	FINAL	BY AC	JB
			. At the the		
	-	-		-	



Figure 1.22: Distribution of knot in winter











Figure 1.23: Distribution of knot during passage







			1	-	No.
		Bla	ckpool		1
-		0	1	1	Y-
II	-	1	The	40	-
1 0	_	-			29
-					
The second	-	3	Southpo	rt	
Fall		OCIND	2	10	-
IF	LE	GEND			
回日日		Ass	ets Ord	on er	
	E	Lim	its: Ons	hore	
Blas		and	Intertid	al	1
1		Infra	astructu	re Ai	rea
	C	Coa	astal sur	vey	
-	C	Inte	a rtidal \//	20	
	M			-5	
	IVIO			perr	ia
1.1			1 0.01		
/		0.04	+ - 0.08		

Inlain					
F					
A B					
- FR					
Al					
10g					
2					
all a					
B					
28					
AL.					
D)					
N/R		~			
X		TN	OREC	AN	IBE
10	9	- 0	cobra 🖉 FL	OTATION E	NERGY
сн	_	Eng	3W Ö	CP	S
C	_	Patries e U	Figure 1.99	ATRESS THESE OF	Deserve
20	Dra	wina Nun	nber:	-	-
3 MA	Sid	12	693-0224	-03	
1	VED	DATE	DETANS	RY	CHECK
scs,	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
- (



Figure 1.24: Distribution of sanderling in winter











Figure 1.25: Distribution of sanderling during passage











Figure 1.26: Distribution of dunlin in winter











Figure 1.27: Distribution of dunlin during passage











Figure 1.28: Distribution of redshank in winter











Figure 1.29: Distribution of redshank during passage







			3 -	-	1
		Bla	ckpool		18
T	ſ	MI	1	-	1
	1	2	an	44	*
19					20
A F		0	Southpo	rt	
	LE	GEND			
		Tra	nsmissio	on	
	C	Lim	its: Ons	hore	
1000		and	Intertid	al ro Ai	
1	-	- Coa	astal sur	vev	ca
	L	area	а		
) Inte	rtidal VI	Ps	
			ensity	peri	id
1		0.0	1 - 0.02		
		0.04	4 - 0.08		
10/01					
and and					
HALL H					
一					
THE STATE					
AL					
Chille Chille					
É.					
2					
delle.					
ALL ALL					
E C					
S					
	-	-			
1)				NERGY
H	-	Eng	BM 🔘	rp	5
C		Partheoi-D (J	Figure 1.29)	
3	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		- 11
E Contraction	1000	120	693-0224	-03	
GS,	03	DATE 19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB



Figure 1.30: Distribution of black-headed gull during the non-breeding season











Figure 1.31: Distribution of black-headed gull during the breeding season











Figure 1.32: Distribution of common gull during the non-breeding season










Figure 1.33: Distribution of common gull during the breeding season







	11	3	-	-1
	Bla	ackpool		
	0	1	T	~
-	X	The	4.	-
-	-	• • •		1
	c	Southpo	rt	- 2
LE	GEND			1
	Tra	nsmissio	on	
-	Ass	sets Ord	er	
-		Intertid	hore al	Sec. 1
	Infr	astructu	re Ai	rea
-	Co	astal sur	vey	
	are	а		
0) Inte	ertidal VI	Ps .	
M	ean D	ensity	per h	na
-		0-0.01		
L		1-0.02		
	0.0	2 - 0.04		
	1	20000		
	T N			IBE
	-En!	BW O	FP	5
_		Figure 1.33	-	
Dra	wing Nu	mber:		
	12	693-0224	-03	
VER 03	DATE	FINAL	BY	JR
	10/03/24	. HARL		50



Figure 1.34: Distribution of great black-backed gull during the non-breeding season





同時		R	-	-	
		Bla	ckpool		-11
4	[14			T
1 10		2		-	*
-					20
TH		0	Southpo	n	
AL	LE	GEND			
THE		Tra	nsmissi	on	
E In	E	Ass Lim	its: Ons	er hore	
Blees		and	Intertid	al	
1	_	Coa	astal sur	vey	ca
		area	а		
	M) Inte	rtidal VI	PS Der k	12
		0.00	0 - 0.01	per I	a
		0.0	1 - 0.02		
		0.02	2 - 0.04		
10	6				
1					
Di-K	È.				
1 AB					
Š,					
X					
1					
S.					
Ŕ					
S					
DET					
15 H					
2					
Sec.					
No.				_	
S		TN	OREC	AN	IBE
10	y	- 0		OTATION E	NERGY
H	-	-Eng	BW O	TP A TETRA TRON O	5
G			Figure 1.34	<u>,</u>	
	Dra	wing Nun 121	nber: 693-0224	-03	
B	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
0.	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
-	1.1			1.1	



Figure 1.35: Distribution of great black-backed gull during the breeding season







即以						
		Bla	ckp	lood		11
-		9	2	1	1	4
TI	-	1	The second	-	400	-
A						
			Sou	thpo	rt	-
tal	LE	GEND	-	-		-
E		Tra	hen	niecia	n	
		Ass	ets	Ord	er	
山面	C	Lim	its:	Ons	hore	9
1:0		and	Int	ertid	al ro Ai	60
1		- Coa	asta	al sur	Vev	cu
++	C	area	a	a our	vey	
-		Inte	rtid	al VI	S	
hC)	M	ean D	ens	sity	per h	na
		0.00) - (0.01		
-		0.0	1 - (0.02		
		0.02	2 - (0.04		
3000						
E						
C mat						
之间						
X						
A						
S.C						
K S						
Ň						
E s						
THE STATE						
SHA BA						
H)						
A B	-					
	1	-				
2	-	IN	cobro	REC	AIV OTATION E	IDE
СН		Eng	ցել	0	CP	5
4		- Ensance of	a anahora	and I	A TETRA TREN C	Canyan
0.	Dra	wing Nue	higu	re 1.35		
	2,14	12	593-	0224	-03	
	VER	DATE	DE	TAILS	BY	CHECK
USGS	03	19/09/24	FI	NAL	AC	JB
				-		



Figure 1.36: Distribution of herring gull during the non-breeding season



rps









Figure 1.37: Distribution of herring gull during the breeding season



















Figure 1.39: Distribution of lesser black-backed gull during the breeding season







四日	R		1	1
	Black	kpool		-10
T		1	1	-
-	-	her	Are.	*
00				7
1		-	X	
F	Sco	outhpo	rt	
	LEGEND			
E	Trans	smissio	on	
ELE	Asse	ts Ord	er hore	
1910-	and I	ntertid	al	
13	Infras	structu	re Ai	rea
	Coas	tal sur	vey	
-		idal VI	Ps	
ļ	Mean De	nsitvi	per h	na
	0.00	- 0.01		
	0.01	0.02		
-	0.02	- 0.04		
-	0.04	0.08		
	0.08	- 0.10		
01	0.10	- 0.20		
引手	0.20	- 0.40		
H	0.40	- 0.80		
AL	1.00	- 2.00		
E.				
111				
2010				
X				
Ś				
X				
S				
Š				
North				
200				
E B				
Ś				
B				
No.				
S	- MAC	OREC		IRF
10	- () co	bra Q FU		MERGY
н	-EnBu	U 🔅	CP	S
G	Fig	gure 1.39	- 11764 TICH 0	or party
5	Drawing Number	er:		
	1269	3-0224-	-03	
8.	VER DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
	03 19/09/24	TINAL	AC	JB
-				



Figure 1.40: Distribution of sandwich tern during the non-breeding season











Figure 1.41: Distribution of sandwich tern during the breeding season











Figure 1.42: Distribution of common tern during the non-breeding season







R		100
Blackpool		A
1 dana	1	T
The sur	400	*
		27
Southpo	rt	
LEGEND	-	-
Transmissi	on	
Assets Ord	er hore	
and Intertid	al	
Coastal sur	re A	rea
area	vey	
Intertidal VI	Ps	
0.04 - 0.08	per l	na
0.04 - 0.08		
Contraction of the		
/	-	
MOREC	AN	1BE
Cobra Ori		NERGY
	AWHATICH	-
Figure 1.42	2	
12693-0224	-03	
VER DATE DETAILS	BY	CHECK
03 19/09/24 FINAL	AC	JB



Figure 1.43: Distribution of common tern during the breeding season











Figure 1.44: Distribution of red-throated diver during the non-breeding season







			3				1
		Bla	ckpool	1			21
-		0	<	t		Z	-
4	-	1	The	-	4.	-	*
la		1					1
F							
TF-		0	Southp	00	rt	R.	22
	LE	GEND					
A		Tra	nsmiss	sic	on		
IE	-	Ass	ets Or	d	er	ro	
	-	and	Intert	id	al		
1		Infra	astruc	tu	re	Ar	ea
	C		astal s	ur	ve	У	
/	C	Inte	a rtidal \		Ds		
	M	ean D	ensity	/ 1	bei	• •	na
-		0.00	0 - 0.0	1			
		0.0	1 - 0.0	2			
		0.04	4 - 0.0	8			
I							
LIT							
1							
A.							
K							
De							
	-	2	_	_	_		=
S		TN	IORE	С	A	M	BE
10	7	0		FL		IN E	NERGY
H	-	-Eng	BW 🔅		A 187 M 2	P	5
C			Figure 1.	44			
2	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		5.0		
E C	-	12	693-022	24-	-03	_	
iGS,	VER 03	DATE 19/09/24	FINAL	5	BY AC		снеск ЈВ
-							



Figure 1.45: Distribution of red-throated diver during the breeding season











Figure 1.46: Distribution of cormorant during the non-breeding season









いる	
	Blackpool
7	
III III	- and my
9	1
上記	Southport
ali	o
THE	Transmission
日日	Assets Order
TE	Limits: Onshore
100	Infrastructure Area
	Coastal survey
-	area
1	Intertidal VPs
11	0.01 - 0.02
	0.02 - 0.04
***	0.04 - 0.08
E	
T	
NT I	
TH-	
9/ ALL	24
S)	
X	
Ż	
X	
ALL I	
A R	
K	
S	MORECAMBE
10	
H	
5	Figure 1.46
0	Drawing Number: 12693-0224-03
(III)	VER DATE DETAILS BY CHECK
38,	03 19/09/24 FINAL AC JB
_	



Figure 1.47: Distribution of cormorant during the breeding season







肥い					
		Bla	ckpool		
88202		0	1	-	4
ATT		X	The	400	
	-	~			
R					
1			Southno	-	
P		0	Southpo	n	~~
	LE	GEND			
E	-	Tra	nsmissi	on	
OF	-	Ass	ets Ord	er	
	-	and	Its: Ons	nore	
		Infra	astructu	re A	rea
	_	Coa	astal sur	vey	
+-	-	area	а		
		Inte	rtidal VI	Ps	
	M	ean D	ensity	per h	na
		0.00	0 - 0.01		
		0.04	4 - 0.08		

Bolot					
F					
3					
-					
10 mg					
	÷				
E Chi					
ALC: N					
	8				
8					
No					
8X	1				
RE					
BA					
aga					
		4			
S)		TN	IOREC	AN	IBF
-					1
CH		Eng		A TETRA TREM O	-
4	-	- 1	Figure 1.47		
20	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		
	1	120	693-0224	-03	
USGS	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB





Estuarine survey area results

1.4.5.56 The estuarine survey area supports numbers of lapwing, curlew, oystercatcher, redshank, teal and wigeon in the intertidal habitats and channels alongside moderate numbers of naturalised Canada and greylag goose and large numbers of mallard. The most common gull species were black-headed gull and herring gull, the estuarine survey area was used by low numbers of lesser black-backed gull and common tern during the breeding season. In total there were 33 waterbird species recorded using the area between October 2022 and March 2023 with at least 3,031 individual waterbirds recorded. The annual abundance of waterbird species recorded during the surveys of the estuarine survey area is provided in **Table 1.14**.

Geese, ducks and swans

- 1.4.5.57 Several species of goose, duck and swan were observed in the estuarine survey area (**Table 1.14**).
- 1.4.5.58 Canada goose *Branta canadensis* were present during most months but more abundant during the non-breeding season with a peak of 282 (**Diagram 1.21**). They were distributed along the estuarine survey area during both seasons with higher concentrations found towards the west (**Figure 1.48** and **Figure 1.49**).



Diagram 1.21: Monthly peak maximum counts of Canada goose

Greylag goose *Anas anas* were also abundant (peak of 84) although in lower numbers than Canada (**Diagram 1.22**). They followed similar distribution patterns to





the Canada goose (**Figure 1.50** and **Figure 1.51**) another species of naturalised goose are of low conservation concern.



Diagram 1.22:

Monthly peak maximum counts of greylag goose

1.4.5.59 Whooper swan (a Ribble and Alt SPA designated feature) were only recorded within the estuarine survey area once during the survey period with a count of 30 birds (**Diagram 1.23**) and this was during the non-breeding season (**Figure 1.52**). This species breeds further north but is found in the area during the wintering period. During this period, it roosts on the saltmarsh and feeds on local arable and pasture farmland.









Diagram 1.23: Monthly peak maximum counts of whooper swan

1.4.5.60 During the 2022/23 winter and throughout the breeding season, shelduck were found in relatively low numbers (**Diagram 1.24**). However, there was a large influx of birds (66) during February 2024. Shelduck were distributed all along the river corridor in the estuarine survey area during both the breeding and non-breeding seasons (**Figure 1.53** and **Figure 1.54**).









Diagram 1.24: Monthly peak maximum counts of shelduck

1.4.5.61 Large numbers of wigeon were observed in the channel within the estuarine survey area, predominantly loafing. Wigeon leave the river channel at night and graze on the nearby grasslands. Wigeon were primarily present during the non-breeding season with peaks of 822 in 2022/23 and 670 in 2023/24 (**Diagram 1.25**), with only low numbers found by April (**Figure 1.56**). During the non-breeding season, they were present in higher densities further to the west (**Figure 1.55**).









Diagram 1.25: Monthly peak maximum counts of wigeon

1.4.5.62 Mallard were present throughout the estuarine survey area (**Figure 1.57** and **Figure 1.58**) and during both seasons although they were more abundant during the non-breeding season (**Diagram 1.26**) with a peak of 88.







Diagram 1.26: Monthly peak maximum counts of mallard

1.4.5.63 Teal were present in high numbers as well (albeit lower than wigeon) with peaks of 275 in 2022/23 and 167 in 2023/24. They were also seasonally present in a similar manner to the wigeon (**Diagram 1.27**) with birds using the area for overwintering and returning to their breeding grounds, generally on lakes and ponds and often in upland areas. Like wigeon, teal were present in low numbers during the breeding season (**Figure 1.60**) but were well distributed with a preference for the western end of the estuarine survey area during the non-breeding season (**Figure 1.59**).







Diagram 1.27: Monthly peak maximum counts of teal

1.4.5.64 Goosander were present in the estuarine survey area predominantly during the non-breeding season with a peak of nine, although with one bird seen during June (**Diagram 1.28**). During the non-breeding season, they were distributed throughout the survey area with sporadic records during the breeding season (**Figure 1.61** and **Figure 1.62**).









Diagram 1.28: Monthly peak maximum counts of goosander

Waders

- 1.4.5.65 A total of 12 wader species were recorded within the estuarine survey area (**Table 1.14**) with the birds found predominantly on the intertidal habitats.
- 1.4.5.66 Oystercatcher were sporadically present within the estuarine survey area with records in the core wintering and passage seasons although the peak of 54 was recorded during the core wintering period in 2022/23 (**Diagram 1.29**). Individuals were distributed across the estuarine survey area with some preference for the western end (**Figure 1.63** and **Figure 1.64**).









Diagram 1.29: Monthly peak counts of oystercatcher

1.4.5.67 Lapwing were present within the estuarine survey area across the core wintering and passage seasons however monthly peak counts were greatest during the 2022/23 core wintering period with 444 when compared to the 2023/24 passage and core wintering seasons (Diagram 1.30) peak 82. Lapwing were primarily distributed towards the western side of the estuarine survey area in both the core wintering and passage seasons (Figure 1.65 and Figure 1.66).







Diagram 1.30: Monthly peak maximum counts of lapwing

1.4.5.68 Grey plover were only recorded during the core wintering season in 2022 in low numbers, the monthly peak count being two individuals (Diagram 1.31). The species was recorded towards the western end of the estuarine survey area (Figure 1.65 and Figure 1.66).









Diagram 1.31: Monthly peak maximum counts of grey plover

1.4.5.69 Curlew were recorded in varying numbers throughout the passage and core wintering seasons. The peak monthly count of 24 occurred early in the 2022/23 core wintering season (**Figure 1.33**) however the next highest count, 19 individuals, occurred in the passage season during August 2023 indicating usage of the estuarine survey area throughout the year. A low density of birds was recorded across the estuarine survey area during the core wintering period (**Figure 1.68**) with slightly higher densities occurring towards the western end of the estuarine survey area. During the passage period (**Figure 1.69**) this preference for the western end was also identified.







Diagram 1.32: Monthly peak counts of curlew

1.4.5.70 Black-tailed godwit were only recorded within the estuarine survey area once (**Diagram 1.33**) and in relatively low numbers of 14 birds (in comparison with the current Ribble and Alt SPA population). They were sighted on the north bank towards the west of the survey area (**Figure 1.70**).









Diagram 1.33: Monthly peak maximum counts of black-tailed godwit

1.4.5.71 Dunlin were infrequently recorded during both the winter and the passage periods (**Diagram 1.34**) and only in notable numbers during January 2023 when 222 birds were present. Dunlin feed on extensive mudflats and would be expected to be found in higher densities closer to the estuary mouth. Those birds that were seen during the winter and passage periods (**Figure 1.71** and **Figure 1.72** respectively) may have been forced upstream due to high spring tides flooding the saltmarsh.







Diagram 1.34: Monthly peak maximum counts of dunlin

1.4.5.72 Snipe were recorded within the estuarine survey area within the passage and core wintering period. Peak counts occurred within the passage periods in October 2022 (13) and October 2023 (21) (Diagram 1.35). Snipe were primarily distributed towards the western end of the estuarine survey area during both the wintering and passage periods (Figure 1.73 and Figure 1.74 respectively).









Diagram 1.35:

Monthly peak maximum counts of snipe

Most records of common sandpiper *Actitis hypoleucos* were for a single bird, the exceptions being October 2022 (2) and July 2023 (4) (**Diagram 1.36**) both of which are during the autumn passage period. Birds were distributed throughout the river corridor during both winter and the passage (**Figure 1.75** and **Figure 1.76**).









Diagram 1.36: Monthly peak maximum counts of common sandpiper

1.4.5.73 Green sandpiper *Tringa ochropus* are notable for being present in February 2024 as, although they are frequent autumn passage visitors, they are only known to winter in low (likely 100 birds or less Hume, *et. al*, 2016) numbers in the UK. The distribution suggests that all sightings may have been of the same bird with distribution clustered towards the west of the estuarine survey area (**Figure 1.77** and **Figure 1.78**).







Diagram 1.37: Monthly peak maximum counts of green sandpiper

1.4.5.74 Redshank were present throughout the winter and passage periods with greater numbers of birds present during the winter (peak of 40 birds **Diagram 1.38**). Redshank were distributed throughout the estuarine survey area (Figure 1.79 and Figure 1.80) with this species favouring foraging in muddy, brackish water. Even though they were frequent visitors they were generally found in low numbers with most sightings of small groups of foraging birds.







Diagram 1.38: Monthly peak maximum counts of redshank

Gulls and terns

- 1.4.5.75 Black-headed gull and herring gull were the most abundant of the gull species, with peak maximum counts of 296 and 156 individuals respectively (**Table 1.14**). Whilst herring gull were predominantly exhibiting non-foraging behaviours, black-headed gull were recorded foraging and non-foraging. Common tern were the only tern species recorded.
- 1.4.5.76 Black-headed gull were found during both the breeding and nonbreeding periods (**Diagram 1.39**). Due the proximity of the breeding colony on the Ribble saltmarshes, Preston dock and at Marshside RSPB the much lower abundancies in the breeding season are notable. During the breeding season they were sporadically sighted loafing (**Figure 1.82**) but in the non-breeding season they were concentrated in higher numbers towards Preston dock (**Figure 1.81**).







Diagram 1.39: Monthly peak maximum counts of black-headed gull

1.4.5.77 Common gull were present in low numbers (peak of eight) during the non-breeding season (**Diagram 1.40**). This is unsurprising as they tend to favour foraging inland on pasture unless cold weather forces them to forage in more saline habitats. Their distribution can be seen in Figure 1.83.







Diagram 1.40: Monthly peak maximum counts of common gull

1.4.5.78 Great black-backed gull were frequent visitors although in low numbers with a peak of five (**Diagram 1.41**). Although present during both seasons they were represented by a single bird during the breeding season (**Figure 1.85**). During the non-breeding season, they used the estuarine survey area sporadically for foraging (**Figure 1.84**).









Diagram 1.41: Monthly peak maximum counts of great black-backed gull

1.4.5.79 Herring gull were the most frequent and numerous large gull species found within the estuarine survey area with a peak of 156 and were present throughout the year, although in lower numbers during the breeding season (**Diagram 1.42**). During the breeding season they were concentrated near Preston docks (**Figure 1.87**) where they may have been trying to predate the black-headed gull and common tern that nest there. In the non-breeding season, they were more widely distributed (**Figure 1.86**).






Diagram 1.42: Monthly peak maximum counts of herring gull

1.4.5.80 Lesser black-backed gull also have a colony located on the Ribble saltmarsh. Despite this, birds did not frequent the estuarine survey area until late in the breeding season with a peak of 41 in August 2023 (Diagram 1.43). This suggests that breeding birds are not using this area and these birds may have already fledged young or been failed breeders. Again, there was a tendency for birds during the breeding season to be found in higher numbers towards Preston dock (Figure 1.89) and it has been reported that lesser black-backed gulls have been seen predating the common tern there (Fylde Bird Club, 2023). During the non-breeding season birds were more widely distributed (Figure 1.88).







Diagram 1.43: Monthly peak maximum counts of lesser black-backed gull

1.4.5.81 Common tern historically bred on the Ribble saltmarshes although it is likely that this colony no longer exists and no apparently occupied nests were reported in 2023 (BTO and JNCC, 2023). There is also the small colony on the artificial platforms at Preston dock, built and maintained by Preston City Council with the assistance of Fylde Bird Club. Common tern were present during the breeding and post-breeding period (**Diagram 1.44**) with low numbers of birds recorded (a peak of 5 birds). It is likely that these were part of the 33 pairs that fledged an estimated 20 young in 2023 (Fylde Bird Club). Birds were distributed along the river corridor during the breeding season (**Figure 1.91**) with only one sighting in the non-breeding season (**Figure 1.92**).







Diagram 1.44: Monthly peak maximum counts of common tern

Cormorants and shag

1.4.5.82 A peak maximum count of 11 cormorant were recorded in the channel of the River Ribble during the 2022/23 year with a peak of 5 recorded so far in the 2023/24 year (**Diagram 1.45**). Cormorant were recorded throughout the year although in low numbers during the breeding season. They were distributed throughout the estuarine survey area (**Figure 1.92** and **Figure 1.93**).







Diagram 1.45: Monthly peak maximum counts of cormorant

Herons and storks

1.4.5.83 Of note was the presence of three cattle egrets *Bubulcus ibis* in October 2022. Other species were grey heron *Ardea cinerea* with eight birds and little egret with 10 birds (**Diagram 1.46** and **Diagram 1.47**). Both species were present year-round, although in greater numbers during the non-breeding season. Their distributions were confined to the river channel and their seasonal distributions can be seen in **Figure 1.94**, **Figure 1.95**, **Figure 1.96** and **Figure 1.97** respectively.









Diagram 1.46: Monthly peak maximum counts of grey heron



Diagram 1.47:

Monthly peak maximum counts of little egret





Table 1.14: Peak abundance of waterbirds recorded in the estuarine survey area during the site-specific surveys (October 2022 to March 2023)

Group	Species	Peak maximum count 2022/23	Peak maximum count 2023/24	UK BOCC5 status	Annex 1 listed	Schedule 1 listed	Section 41 listed
Geese, ducks	Canada goose	282	268	Green	no	no	no
and swans	Greylag goose	84	67	Amber	no	no	no
	Mute swan Cygnus olor	0	2	Green	no	no	no
	Whooper swan	30	0	Amber	yes	yes	no
	Shelduck	11	66	Amber	no	no	no
	Wigeon	822	670	Amber	no	no	no
	Mallard	60	88	Amber	no	no	no
	Teal	275	167	Amber	no	no	no
	Goldeneye	1	0	Red	no	no	no
	Goosander	5	9	Green	no	no	no
Waders	Oystercatcher	54	28	Amber	no	no	no
	Lapwing	444	82	Red	no	no	yes
	Grey plover	2	0	Amber	no	no	no
	Curlew	24	10	Red	no	no	yes
	Black-tailed godwit	14	0	Red	no	yes	yes
	Dunlin	222	46	Red	no	no	no
	Jack snipe Lymnocryptes minimus	0	1	Green	no	no	no





Group	Species	Peak maximum count 2022/23	Peak maximum count 2023/24	UK BOCC5 status	Annex 1 listed	Schedule 1 listed	Section 41 listed
	Snipe	13	21	Amber	no	no	no
	Common sandpiper	4	1	Amber	no	no	no
	Green sandpiper	1	1	Amber	no	yes	no
	Redshank	40	22	Amber	no	no	no
	Greenshank	0	1	Amber	no	yes	no
Gulls and terns	Black-headed gull	296	80	Amber	no	no	no
	Common gull	8	3	Red	no	no	no
	Great black-backed gull	5	5	Red	no	no	no
	Herring gull	156	83	Red	no	no	yes
	Lesser black-backed gull	41	2	Amber	no	no	no
	Common tern	5	0	Amber	yes	no	no
Cormorants and shag	Cormorant	11	5	Green	no	no	no
Herons and	Cattle egret	3	0	Amber	no	no	no
storks	Grey heron	4	8	Green	no	no	no
	Little egret	3	10	Green	yes	no	no
Kingfishers	Kingfisher	1	1	Green	yes	yes	no







Figure 1.48: Distribution of Canada goose during the non-breeding season







Figure 1.49: Distribution of canada goose during the breeding season





13		1	31	_	1
i=o		Bla	ckpool		
1		-	1		T
10	1	~	The	200	*
1					
in				. (
		0	Southpo	rt	
	LE	GEND			- 1
1	-	Tra	nsmissi	on	
F	L	Ass Ord	ets Ons er Limit	shore	
2	_	Est	uarine s	urve	v
d		area	а		
	C) Ons	shore VI	Ps	
R	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	a
1		0.0	5 - 0.07	5	
	-	0.2	5 - 0.5		
轮					
HA					
er					
1					
5					
1					
his .					
E					
No.					
T					
Г					
/					
-					
B					
					_
		KN			IRE
X	1			OTATION E	NERGY.
		En	8W 🍅	CP	5
		Patternie is U	L officiery weet	ATETMA TILL O	
	Dra	wing Nue	rigure 1.49	,	
an	Sid	120	693-0285	-03	
-Qr	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
GS,	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
		1			1





Figure 1.50: Distribution of greylag goose during the non-breeding season





La la		n's	J		
-0		Bla	ckpool		
		0	-		-
2	-	1	The	Any	-
1		-		5	
				N.	
The second		0	Southpo	π	3
New Y	LE	GEND			
		Tra	nsmissi	on	
3	C	Ass	ets Ons	shore	9
H Y		Gra	er Limit	S	
đ	C	area	anne s a	uive	y
TTT I	C) Ons	shore VI	Ps	
6	M	ean d	ensity p	oer h	na
h		<0.0	01		
		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
14 A		0.0	5 - 0.07	5	
16		0.1	- 0.15		
21	-	0.2	9 - 0.5		
1					
1					
13					
4					
- No					
1					
1					
たの日日					
ない					
1					
/					
1					
6					
2					
X					
日日日		1.	0.000		-
X		TN	IOREC	CAN	1BE
		C-5		CC	1
22		Pathent P.1		ATTEMPTONE	
113			Figure 1.50)	
10	Dra	wing Nun	693-0285	-03	
-	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
s.	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
	14	11-11		11.14	12.21





Figure 1.51: Distribution of greylag goose during the breeding season











Figure 1.52: Distribution of whooper swan during the non-breeding season

15					1
n⊧o		Bla	ckpool		- 11
1		-	1		T
		1	The	200	*
					2
in			Couthno		
		0	Southpo	n	
	LE	GEND			- 1
-C-	-	Tra	nsmissio	on	
	-	Ord	er Limit	S	
N	-	Est	uarine s	urve	y
1		area	а		
	C) Ons	shore VI	Ps	
Her -	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	a
1		<0.0	J1		
		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
館	F		20 - 0.0	5	
川門			0.15	5	
er	-	0.1	- 0.15		
12.2					
in the second					
٣,					
N Aug					
P. S					
E					
h					
H					
/					
-					
11					
×.					
					_
Real		1N	OREC	AN	BF
	9	- 0	cobra @ FL	OTATION E	NERGY
	-	Ens	3W Ö	CP	5
		Patterni in U	Eiguro 1 Eg	ATETNA TELH C	O-PROFIL
	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	,	-
Z		12	693-0285	-03	
2	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
668	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
			4	1.1.1.1	1

			de la		1
1-0		Bla	ckpool		1
1			1		T
1	-	1	An	2.00	-
		-			o/n
E.				X	
		0	Southpo	π	-
Acres 1	LE	GEND			
		Tra	nsmissio	on	
6	E	Ass	ets Ons	shore	9
		- Est	uarine s	s urve	v
1	C	area	a	urve	y
The second	() Ons	shore VI	Ps	
and and	M	ean d	ensity p	oer h	a
7		<0.0	01		
		0.0	1 - 0.025	5	
10		0.02	25 - 0.05	5	
即日		0.0	5 - 0.07	5	
1		0.0	75 - 0.1		
er		0.1	- 0.15		
E L					
107					
Î					
isa i					
1					
7					
/					
T					
S					
	-	1			
A.		N	IOREC	AN	IBE
	y	0	cobra 👌 FU	OTATION E	HERGY
	-	Eng	3W 🔘	CP	5
		Pathana 0.11	Figure 1.54		
11	Dra	wing Nur	nber:	-	
10		12	693-0285-	-03	1
GS.	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
-20	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
		1.		1.1.1.	1 - + + +

			à		2
í=o		Bla	ckpool		
1		9	-		-
	-	X	The	1.00	-
1		-		5	
5				W.	2.1
N.		0	Southpo	π	
1	1.6	GEND		-	-
1		Tra	nemieei	an	
-	E	Ass	ets Ons	shore	
F.		Ord	ler Limit	s	
		Est	uarine s	urve	у
Ø		area	а		
ST.	C) Ons	shore VI	Ps	
	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	ia
7		<0.0	01		
		0.02	25 - 0.0	5	
52		0.0	5 - 0.07	5	
則月		0.1	5 - 0.02	5	
i i i i		0.2	5 - 0.5		
er		0.5	- 0.75		
1		0.7	5 - 1		
LO		1-	1.5		
		1.5	- 2.5		
é		2.5	- 4		
isa					
2					
	0				
The second					
1					
/					
~					
1					
X					
Des					
	-	3		_	
WHEN THE		1 M	ORFC	AN	IBF
X	-	- 0	icobra @ FL	OTATION E	HERGY
	-	Ens	3W 🍈	CP	5
		Pathana 9.11	K officiant and	A TETRA FECH O	Demaker
	Dro	wing No.	Figure 1.55		
10	Ura	wing Nun	693_0225	-03	
S.	VES	12	DETA# 0	-03	CHECK
GS.	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
	141	1.1.1.1		11.4	11.11

				-	11 1
主法			this		N
n o		Bla	ckpool		11
1		d'V	1	1	<
-	-	X	There	400	-
7	-	-		1	1
\tilde{U}					20
in the					
SI		0	Southpo	ort	-
1		OFND	-	- 31	-
	LE	GEND			. 11
1	-	Tra	nsmissi	on	
	L	Ass	ets Ons	shore	•
- 1		Ora	er Limi	S	01
-	C	Est	uarine s	surve	У
Ø.		area	а		
	C) Ons	shore V	Ps	
	M	ean d	ensity	per h	a
1		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	(2^{+})
-					
NACE.					
F					
3.5.0					
ver					
1000					
-					
Ski					
481					
6					
N 100					
1					
1-1					
1					
-					
1					
T					
11					
34					
		1			
A.		TN	ORFC	AN	IBF
	-	- 0			NERGY
		Ent		CO	
	-	Patrias in D	6-ittice-mil		INNER
1E		- 0	Figure 1.56	3	
	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		
20		12	693-0285	-03	
- Car	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
sas	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
. (

		15	in.		1
0		oBla	ickpool		
1		×	5	4.	
and the second s	-			-	1
				V	
		0	Southpo	π	
	LE	GEND			
	-	Tra	nsmissio	on	
	L	Ass Ord	ets Ons	snore s	
	E	Est	uarine s	urve	у
1/an	0	area	a shore VI	De	
N 14	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	ia
1] <0.0	01		
		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
P YII		0.02	25 - 0.0	5	
-		0.0	75 - 0.1	J	
r		0.1	- 0.15		
1 El		0.15	5 - 0.02	5	
10		0.25	5 - 0.5		
1					
ise A					
B					
(Landal					
1922					
下					
/					
1000	2				
Ś	C				
X					
V SAL					
-Bel		KN	ORFC	AN	IBE
NAME OF	7	0		OTATION	NERGY
S.Y.	-	-Eng	8W 🔘	F P	5
Carl	1	Lowed to 0	Figure 1.57	,	
11	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	02	
1	VEP	120 DATE	DETAN S	-03	CHECK
	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
	1.11	1			

Į.			1.			1
ori=0		Bla	ckpd	loc		
J			-	1		1
	-	1	A.		4.	-
3/		-			5	
12					N.	
31		0	Sout	hpo	π	3
	LE	GEND	-			
E.		Tra	nsm	issid	on	
LANE -		Ass	ets	Ons	hore	9
		Ord	er L	imit	S	
	C	area	uarir a	ie s	urve	y
	C) Ons	shore	e VI	Ps	
	M	ean d	ensi	ity p	oer h	na
2		<0.0	01			
		0.0	1 - 0	.02	5	
		0.02	25 -	0.0	5	
JA		0.0	5 - 0	.07	5	
net in		0.1	5 - 0	.02	5	
ver						
1-						
a la						
-aKgi						
(
S-lsa						
100	1					
L						
THE						
XH						
5						
/						
-						
(I)						
	÷.,					
ALC: NOT		1.				-
	_	TN	IOR cobra	EC	AN	IBF
			21.1	PP	CO	C
		Pathena All		•	ATITMATIONO	Depaker
			Figure	1.58	3	
1	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	205	00	
1 Car	VET	12	093-0	285	-03	CUECU
ISGS.	03	19/09/24	FIN	AL	AC	JB
	1		-		11-1	11

Figure 1.59: Distribution of teal during the non-breeding season

					1
ori≐o		Bla	ckpool		1
1			1	T	1
	-	~	an	-	*
					1
1.5					
P		0	Southpo	rt	2
	LE	GEND			
		Tra	nsmissi	on	
		Ass	ets Ons	shore)
		Ect	er Limit	S	v
20	C	area	anne s a	urve	У
	C) Ons	shore VI	Ps	
	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	a
2		<0.0	01		
2		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
-PT		0.02	25 - 0.0	5	
JA		0.05	5 - 0.07	5	
1.11214		0.07	75 - 0.1		
iver		0.1	- 0.15		
		0.15	5 - 0.02	5	
10		0.25	5 - 0.5		
365		0.5	- 0.75		
		1 - 1	1.5		
Nº ISH					
L					
-					
- K					
/					
-					
1 P					
F					
	-	1			
		M	IOREC	AN	IBE
	>	6	cobra C FL	DTATION E	NERGY
	-	Eng	8W 🔿	rp	5
10	-		Figure 1.59)	
	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		
Lan		120	693-0285	-03	
USGS.	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	СНЕСК
	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB

0.25 m Datum: OSGB 1936 Projection: British National Grid Scale@379mmx231mm: 1:12,000

0.13 0.17

0.35 km

Figure 1.60: Distribution of teal during the breeding season

Drawing Title: ESTUARINE DISTRIBUTION OF TEAL BREEDING SEASON

Project Name: MORGAN AND MORECAMBE OFFSHORE WIND FARMS: TRANSMISSION ASSETS

					L	-	1-
	AND MANAGEMENT	Ashton-o	c	Blac	kpool		1
	四日に		1		~		1
				0	~		*
	Ashton Park	the second					1
Primary School		" BAY		S	outhpo	rt	
Larches	Ashton Bank		LEGE			- M	
	MARKE		LLOL	Tran	smissio	on	
	Committee Committee			Asse	ts Ons	hore	•
VUM SHE	Verminister in the second		E	Jrae Estu:	er Limit arine s	S	v
-8-1		B. A		area	unne s	uive	y
		BI RE	00	Dnsh	nore VI	Ps	1
		CIE Maria Cale	Mear	1 de	nsity p	ber h	a
	A CAR	SUT.		0.01	- 0.02	5	
n Agent Mar	Sound Constant).15	- 0.025	5	
		S G					
	Nose WeW	MUV path					
Nu		8					
	- Adding						
Paulste g	VIII.	Pagisti Marine					
		ast the cells of					
		Little D					
		And and					
	AN Zing In	stables					
a find							
A Star	r Sha						
	Easter in Mandal						
	15 T	and Technology College					
The the state	X	Blashaw Dire World					
Min View a We Hall Novel	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	A.					
inter ram	Handrick Hall						
President fam	(iiie of)						
A A							
EDittste		100					
EDInSta Photo		EHR					
A line and a			-6	NAC		-	IDE
	Inwick Orosa (tauns of)		-	Geo	sbra @FL	AIV	
man of the		R.C.S	E	in Bl	[©] لر	CP	5
Plantation			- Tax	Fi	gure 1.60	. ITTA TELA C	an Franci
	Tarn Woo	Carl Statement of Carl	Drawing	Numb	er:	10	
	AN - A	A B		1269	93-0285-	-03	
Data Sources: Client, The Crown Estate, MMO, NRW, ScotGov, MarineRegions.org	© Crown copyright, All rights reserved. 2024 License number Service layer credits. Esn UK, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, Four Esn, USGS	r: 100031673 quare, FAO, METIMASA, USBS,	VER DA 03 19/0	9/24	FINAL	BY AC	JB

Figure 1.61: Distribution of goosander during the non-breeding season

Į.			h.	- 4	1
n=o		Bla	ckpool		
1		0	1	1	-
110	-	1	The	any	*
U					1
1			-		
M		0	Southpo	rt	
To a local de la comparación d	LE	GEND			
		Tra	nsmissio	on	
	E	Ass	ets Ons	hore	9
N		- Est	uarine s	urve	v
1	E	are	a	uivo	y
	() Ons	shore VI	Ps	
1	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	a
1		<0.	01		
		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
52		0.02	25 - 0.0	5	
JH H					
ini					
DAR.					
-					
18					
100					
1					
las					
1	1				
	6				
品					
K					
T					
1					
-					
11					
	-				
X					
Real		KN	OREC		IBE
X	-	1 10		OTATION E	NERGY
	_	Eng	3W 🍏	CP	S
	-	Unameri in D	Figure 1.64	A FETTA TROI ST	
	Dra	wing Nur	nber:		
		12	693-0285	-03	
- De	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
auð,	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
					1

Figure 1.62: Distribution of goosander during the breeding season

Figure 1.63: Distribution of oystercatcher during winter

14		1	1 m	- 4	1 - T
ñ o		Bla	ckpool		
1		-	-	1	
10	1		Ann	244	*
					21
E			Southno	rt	
		0	Southpo	in la	
	LE	GEND			
-	F	Ass	ets Ons	on shore	
B		Ord	er Limit	s	
	C	Est	uarine s	urve	У
	C	- area	a shore VI	De	
	M	ean d	ensity r	ber h	na
Y		<0.0	D1		
		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
52		0.02	25 - 0.0	5	
F		0.0	5 - 0.07	5	
/er		0.1	o - 0.02	5	
1					
15	2				
6					
185					
L					
-					
jú					
	1				
/					
1					
	1				
	1	-			
を		TN	OREC	AN	1BE
	-	0			NERGY
	-	Eng	3ω 🧔	rp	S
		in writing of D	Figure 1.63	3	
	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	10	
S Se	-	12	693-0285	-03	
sos	VER 03	DATE 19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
			-	1	

Figure 1.64: Distribution of oystercatcher during passage

而		15				1
554		Black	po	ol		11
0 11 17		0	2	1.	T	27
20		5	-	-	-	1 0
7.8					-	73
629						
1.81		Sc	outh	port	1-	
12	_	0		100	1	
250	LE	EGEN	D			
14		Tra	nsn	nissi	on	
副	L	Ass	ets	Ord	er	2.4
EV.		Ect	uor	inos		
31/1	C	are	a	ine s	uive	y
ιĉ	м	ean d	ens	ity p	er ha	a
	Г] <0.	01			
IT.		0.0	1 - 1	0.02	5	
and and		0.0	25 -	0.0	5	
1112		0.0	5 - 1	0.07	5	
」,顾	1	On	sho	re V	Ps	
	4	2 011				
Rdy						
24						
S						
1						
D						
10.00						
14						
No.						
15						
ñ.T						
븳						
뮎						
3						
D						
1						
13						
A						
142						
H)						
12						
20						
BB		1			205	
Sol 1		N	10	REC	AN	1BE
19	9	0	cobro	topi	DTATION D	NERGY
100	-	Eng	βW	0	rp	5
3/3		Particular D	Figu	re 1.63	3	-
N	Dra	wing Nur	nber:			
A		12	693	-0285-	-02	
10.1	VER	DATE	DE	TAILS	BY	CHECK
u505.	01	04/07/24	F	NAL	HM	AM
-	-	1.1.1.		11.2		

Figure 1.65: Distribution of lapwing during winter

					201
on⊧o		Bla	ckpool		1
1		-	1	1	-
24	-	1	an	100	*
		1		2	Z
(E			Cauthan	1	
		0	Southpo	ort	24
-	LE	GEND			
11	-	Tra	nsmissi	on	
F	-	Ord	er Limit	S	;
	-	Est	uarine s	urve	у
11		area	а		
	C) Ons	shore V	Ps .	10
	M	ean d	ensity	per h	na
7 *			1 0.02	5	
-Pi			75 - 0.02	5	
頂		0.1	- 0.15		
E Site	-	0.1	5 - 0.02	5	
ver		0.2	5 - 0.5		
		0.5	- 0.75		
1		0.7	5 - 1		
SIS		1 -	1.5		
Nº lan					
30					
1					
THE					
K					
6					
/					
4					
11					
-					
	6				
	-	_			
		KN	ORFC	AN	1BF
	-	- 0	cobra CF	DIATION	NERGY
	-	-Eng	3W Ö	CP	S
1.St	-	Tarray II I	Figure 1.6	* 10704 TADA C	Gentral
	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	~	Ì
1 in		12	693-0285	-03	
usos,	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
	-	_		-	

Figure 1.66: Distribution of lapwing during passage

47						201
on⊧o		Bla	ckp	lood		1
1			4	1	1	-
	-	1	A.	-	100	*
#/						1
E.				-		
24		0	Sou	ithpo	rt	2
	LE	GEND				
11	-	Tra	nsn	nissio	on	
	C	Ass	ets	Ons	hore)
		Est	uar			v
11	C	area	a	ine 3	urve	y
	(Ons	sho	re VI	⊃s	
	M	ean d	ens	sity p	ber h	a
A.		0.02	25 -	0.0	5	
		0.1	- 0	.15		
		0.1	5 - 1	0.02	5	
J		0.2	5 - 1	0.5		
VOF		0.5	- 0	.75		
TIMET	-	1.5	- 2	.5		
SIS						
90						
1						
las						
10						
1						
HU						
	Κ.					
- K						
-						
/						
1-						
11						
	t.					
	6.					
X						
	1=					
		KN	10	REC	:AN/	IBF
	9	- 0	cobro	DEL	DTATION E	NERGY
	_	Eng	βW	Ö	CP	5
		Tarmente	Figure	re 1 66	A TETRA TALM O	anyaari
	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	10 1.00		
in		12	693	-0285-	-03	
1500	VER	DATE	DE	TAILS	BY	СНЕСК
,ada,	03	19/09/24	F	INAL	AC	JB
				100		

Figure 1.67: Distribution of grey plover during winter

13	1	1			1
i=n		Bla	ckpool		- 11
1		0	t		-
1	-	1	The	4.00	-
	_			- 1	
1				12	
			Southpo	rt	-
1)		0			
X	LE	GEND	2.00		
-del	-	Tra	nsmissio	on	
	-	Ass Ord	er Limit	snore	2
2	_	- Esti	iarine s	urve	v
à	E	area	a anno s	uive	y
1ª	(Ons	shore VI	S	
	M	ean d	ensity r	ber h	a
1		7<00)1		
	-				
P7					
論					
er					
27.02					
Lie					
1					
1					
Ins					
6					
-					
腸					
9					
/					
/					
T					
11					
Ż					
EX.					
Adat		1	2.5.45		
A.		N	IOREC	AN	IBE
	9	0	cobra 🔘 FU	OTATION E	NERGY
N.	-	Eng	8W Ö	٢P	5
		Partment is U	Figure 1.67	A TETA TIDI O	
	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	-	
-		12	693-0285-	-03	
200	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
GS,	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
				1054	1.7.1.

Figure 1.68: Distribution of curlew during winter

17		1	1	-	1
ni=o		Bla	ckpool		1
1		0	1	1	4
	-	1	an	4	*
					1
in the					
		0	Southpo	rt	2
	LE	GEND			
12	-	Tra	nsmissio	on	
Þ	L	Ass Ord	ets Ons	shore	÷
N	-	Est	Jarine s	urve	v
11		area	а		,
	C	Ons	shore VI	S	-
	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	a
		_ <0.0)1 		
			1 - 0.02	-	
箭			25 - 0.03	5	
			5-0.07	,	
/er					
101979					
lo					
3K5					
No. les					
30					
L					
THE					
international and					
9					
1					
*					
11					
X					
	-	,			
Net		TN	IOREC	AN	IBE
	-	0	cobra C FL	DTATION E	NERGY
1	-	Eng	8W 🌔	rp	S
	1	- a feet to a	Figure 1.68		
1	Dra	wing Nur	nber:	1	
1		12	693-0285	-03	
SGS	VER 03	DATE 19/09/24	DETAILS FINAL	BY	снеск ЈВ

0.25 m Geodetic Information: Datum: OSGB 1936 0.35 km Projection: British National Grid Scale@379mmx231mm: 1:12,000

0.13 0.17

Figure 1.69: Distribution of curlew during passage

Drawing Title: ESTUARINE DISTRIBUTION OF CURLEW PASSAGE SEASON

Project Name: MORGAN AND MORECAMBE OFFSHORE WIND FARMS: TRANSMISSION ASSETS

	Sharper at an and the second s	
	A MANUTURAL MANUEL AND	Blackpool
	ASACON-O	°
		Man John
	Rothon Park	
Community Primumity School	1	Southport
	NEW CALL	o
	shton Bank	LEGEND
		Transmission
		Assets Onshore
	And a state of the	
		area
In Sta		Onshore VPs
		Mean density per ha
		<0.01
		0.01 - 0.025
P ALEXANDER	State Soing	0.025 - 0.05
Man Aller	Luck, finder) 19 (Stringer 11)	0.05 - 0.075
		0.00 0.010
BUINCST VI	River	
	MLW P.H.	
Med Contraction	B	
	a start and and	-
S Puste a	Sks Proj Str	
	111 may La San 1	
	Stables	
a for		
5m /		
and the second s		
	And a second sec	
	is Marine	
	BS BILL CANCEL	
	BE PARTY SPOR	
	Be Billions - Billions	
	E Provi Sports Provi Sports College	
	E Constanting of the second se	
	In a second seco	
	All access Prices Sport and Enchoday College Biology College	
	In the second se	
men familier Description Distribution Dis	In the second se	
	Particular Provision	
	Parliament Programment Progra	
a de la seconda de	In the second se	
er e	Prices port Differences Calibre Unit Device Prices port Differences Difference	MORECAMBE
en fari menten en e	Participant of the second seco	
	In the second se	
	In a second seco	
	In the set of the set	Figure 1.69
	Provide standing of the second	Figure 1.69 Tages103 Tages10 Tage
Pinters Client, The Occur State, MMO, NKW, Scolds Clients	Pictors Half Device of the second sec	Figure 1.69 Drawing Number: 12693-0285-03 VER DATE DETAILS BY CHECK
Pieton Pi	All depine researed 2024 Lenson rationer. 1020 METHINARA LEDS.	VER DATE DETAILS BY CHECK 03 19/09/24 FINAL AC JB

Figure 1.71: Distribution of dunlin during winter

		1	3		
ito		Bla	ckpool		
1		9	-	1	-
2.12	-	1	The	4.00	-
		-		-	
1				V	
M		0	Southpo	rt	
1	LE	GEND	-	-	
1		Tra	nsmissi	on	
	E	Ass	ets Ons	hore	9
		Ord	er Limit	s	
A	C	area	uarine s a	urve	у
and a	C) Ons	shore VI	Ps	
10	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	na
1		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
		0.0	75 - 0.1		
		0.1	- 0.15		
自自		0.1	5 - 0.02	5	
6		0.5	- 0.75		
er					
100					
1					
ins.					
1					
1					
T					
1					
5					
/					
T					
X					
3					
No.					
The state		1			-
		N	IOREC	AN	1BE
	9	0	copia 🔘 M	OTATION E	NERGY.
	-	Eng	8W 🔘	TP ATTEMATION OF	5
			Figure 1.71		
	Dra	wing Nur	nber:		
		12	693-0285	-03	
GS,	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
					1

Figure 1.72: Distribution of dunlin during passage

ij.		1	1	-	1-
oni-o		Bla	ckpool		1
1		N	-1	1	T
27	-	~	an	-	*
~					1
A		3	Southpo	rt	-
1	LF	GEND		W	
E		Tra	nsmissi	on	
	C	Ass	ets Ons	shore	•
		- Esti	er Limit Jarine s	s urve	v
11	C	area	a a	urve	y
, C	C	Ons	shore VI	Ps	
	M	ean d	ensity	ber h	na
7 %			1 - 0 05i	5	
	F	0.1	5 - 0.02	5	
J					
5 23214	È.				
iver					
505 LS					
98					
L' lan					
R					
L					
THE					
- THE					
1					
1th					
	2				
	-				
		1N	IOREC	AN	1BE
	2	- 0	cobra 🥂 FL	DTATION E	NERGY
	-	Eng	SM 🔘	rp	S
			Figure 1.72	2	
111	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	00	
1 Contraction	VER	120	093-0285	-03	CHECK
USGS,	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB

Figure 1.73: Distribution of snipe during winter

12		14	Jan-	- 4	1
n o		Bla	ckpool		1
1			1	1	-
	-	1	The	4-	1
1					1
1					
		0	Southpo	rt	
	LE	GEND			
14	_	Tra	nsmissio	on	
Þ	L	Ass	ets Ons ler Limit	shore	;
		- Est	uarine s	urve	v
đ	-	area	a		·
	C) Ons	shore VI	Ps	
	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	ia
. >		<0.(01		
			1 - 0.02	5	
1		0.02	25 - 0.03	5	
/er					
25.25					
La La					
iks -					
6					
155					
-					
L					
-					
Ņ					
1					
/					
-					
1					
X					
PR					
		1			
P		IN	IOREC	AN	IBE
	-	0	cobra O FL		NERGY
	-	-Eng	3W 🔘	TP A MILM THE P	5
E			Figure 1.73		
2	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		
		12	693-0285	-03	
sas	VER 03	DATE 19/09/24	FINAL	BY AC	JB

Figure 1.74: Distribution of snipe during passage

		Bla	ckpool		
1		0	1	-	<
Jul .	-	X	The	4	1
1	-			-	
11				12	
		3	Southpo	rt	
1000	1.5	CEND	-	1	
the second		Tro	acmicci	n	-
Cont.	C	Ass	ets Ons	hore	
		Ord	er Limit	s	
100	F	Est	uarine s	urve	у
ļ	-	area	a		
1/1	() Ons	snore VI	S.	
-	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	a
1		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
10.5			0.15	2	
1 10	-	0.1	- 0.15		
j					
\$12(L)					
1					
10 U					
l					
ĺ					
2.0					
1					
11.200					
198					
e la					
THE COMPLETE					
8 6 7					
U					
1					
Į					
1					
X NOV					
N.V.N.					
Con New York					
A AN					
111					
100	_		_		
江町へ		TN	ORFC	AN	BF
1	-	- 0	cobra D FL	DTATION E	HERGY
	_	Eng	3W 🍈	CP	5
A CON		Paitners -110	Figure 1 74	A TRYNA TRUY OF	Dettaat
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		-
1		12	693-0285	-03	
2	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
				-	

		1	1		-	1
arism.	Blackpool					
	-	X	A	-	4.	-
$\exists /$						
				-	1	
		0	Sou	ithpo	rt	
-	LE	GEND				
1	-	Tra	nsn	Ons	on	
F		Ord	er l	_imit	s	
	C	Est	Jari	ine s	urve	у
	6	area	a		20	
<u>.</u>	M	ean d	ens	itv r	oer h	a
1			01			
7						
-P C						
JA						
WOF						
TIME						
	1					
SKS						
-						
T. las						
100						
N						
THE						
× <u>1</u>						
- K						
1						
1-						
	Ş.					
		-6 .			-	IDF
X	-		cobra	KEC FL	AIV DTATION E	NERGY.
15	-	Tarwann	Figure	re 1 75	A 10794-1929-0	any says
	Drawing Number:					
Line	12693-0285-03					
USGS,	VER	DATE	DE	TAILS	BY	CHECK
	00	10/08/24	FI		~ U	50







Figure 1.77: Distribution of green sandpiper during winter



















Figure 1.79: Distribution of redshank during winter





		14	1	-	100
		Bla	ckpool		- 12
n-o		0		-	4
	-	1 m	-	Ans	-
	-			<u> </u>	J.
\swarrow					1
in the			Southp	ort	
1		0	Jourip	JIC	
1	LE	GEND			
1	-	Tra	nsmiss	ion	
Ē	-	Ass Ord	ets On Ier Limi	snore ts	•
N		- Esti	uarine	surve	v
1	C	area	a	Surve	y
E	(Ons	shore V	'Ps	
0	M	ean d	ensity	per h	na
2		<0.0	01		
		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
P7		0.02	25 - 0.0	5	
前		0.0	5 - 0.07	5	
NED.		0.07	75 - 0.1		
/er		0.1	- 0.15		
109792		0.1	5 - 0.02	5	
lo					
sks					
1					
A BR					
1					
PIL:					
international and					
64					
1					
1					
Tes					
×					
X					
	-				
R		KN		-	IRE
X	-		cobra 2	LOTATION E	NERGY
		EnF	3W 💍	CP	5
5		Tarmen of	K ofshore and	A COTTAN TRACK O	Campanyi
16			Figure 1.7	9	
	Dra	wing Nun	nder:	5.02	
-		12	093-028	0-03	laur
SGS.	VER 03	DATE 19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB







Figure 1.80: Distribution of redshank during passage



13		15	1	- 4	1
nero.		Bla	ckpool		1
Ĭ		0	1	1	<
	-	X	The	4-	-
		-		- 1	7
F					
N		0	Southpo	rt	1
	LE	GEND	5		
12		Tra	nsmissio	on	
	C	Ass	ets Ons	hore	•
		Ora	ler Limit	S	v
Y al	C	area	a anne s	uive	у
R	0	Ons	shore VI	⊳s	
	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	a
1		<0.0	01		1
		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
- H		0.02	25 - 0.0	5	
MM		0.0	0.15	S	
rer	-	0.1	- 0.15		
-					
15					
-					
155					
L					
111					
/					
-					
11					
X					
	20				
Repart		1N	ORFC	AN	IBF
	-	- 0	cobra @FL	OTATIONE	NERGY
	-	Eng	3W 🔘	rp	5
		Pamase	Figure 1.80	- TTIM 1804 0	
	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		
		12	693-0285-	-03	
ios,	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
	30		. intella	,40	





Figure 1.81: Distribution of black-headed gull during the non-breeding season













Figure 1.82: Distribution of black-headed gull during the breeding season



4.		14	1	-	10
oni-o		Bla	ckpool		1
1			1		4
	-	1	an	-	*
1/		-			1
13					
A		0	Southp	ort	0.
	LE	GEND			
E	-	Tra	nsmiss	ion	
115	C	Ass	ets On	shore	9
		Ora	er Limi	IS	
2	C	area	anne : a	surve	y
		Ons	shore V	'Ps	
	M	ean d	ensity	per h	na
2		0.0	1 - 0.02	25	
		0.02	25 - 0.0)5	
TAC'S		0.5	- 0.75		
JEA		1 - 1	1.5		
1734500					
mag					
SIS LS					
90					
Las .					
100					
1					
H					
	1				
K					
/					
100					
11					
X					
	-	_			
		KN	ORFO	CAN	1RF
	-	1 0	Icobra 2	LOTATION	NERGY
	_	Eng	ຍພ 🍈	CF	5
	-	Tarwent	Figure 1.9	2	CHIPANIT
	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	-	
in		120	693-028	5-03	
isco.	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB





Figure 1.83: Distribution of common gull during the non-breeding season

















		1	hor	- 4	J.
n o		Bla	ckpool		
1		-	-	1	2
9			Ann	244	*
					21
E			Couthno		
191		0	Southpo	π	20
	LE	GEND			
14	-	Tra	nsmissio	on	
	-	Ord	er Limit	s	:
2	-	Est	uarine s	urve	у
Ì Ø		area	а		
N.	C) Ons	shore VI	Ps	
	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	a
7			1 0 001	5	
			- 0.02	5	
Ĩ		0.02	_0 - 0.0		
333.53					
er					
2022					
120					
B					
6					
155					
-2					
1					
-					
Ŗ					
1					
/					
-					
1					
	1				
S					
A LANGE		1		-	
N		1 N	IOREC	AN	IBE
	y	0	cobra Ori		NERGY
	-	-Eng	3W 🔘	P	5
			Figure 1.84		
1	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		
0		12	093-0285	-03	aur
GS	03	DATE 19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
_(







Figure 1.85: Distribution of great black-backed gull during the breeding season







Figure 1.86: Distribution of herring gull during the non-breeding season





		ns	A		N.
-0		Bla	ckpool		1
and the second		-	1		T
17	-	1	The	4.4	-
1		-			20
ALC: N			-	X	
		0	Southpo	π	-
Ne.	LE	GEND			
	-	Tra	nsmissio	on	
ş	F	Ass Ord	ets Ons er Limit	snore s	9
2	-	Est	uarine s	urve	v
1	-	area	а		
STAL 1	C	Ons	shore VI	S	
2	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	ia
2		<0.0	D1		
- 10	-		1 - 0.02:	5	
NH H			5 - 0.07	5	
		0.1	- 0.15		
er		0.1	5 - 0.02	5	
1 61		0.2	5 - 0.5		
1					
1					
é					
İsa					
11					
N					
and a					
11					
この					
/					
-					
S					
CALL PROV	-	1		_	
		N	IOREC	AN	IBE
	7	0		OTATION E	HERGY
	-	-Eng	BM 🔘	FP	5
1 and			Figure 1.86	í.	
1	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		
		12	693-0285	-03	
8,	03	DATE 19/09/24	FINAL	BY AC	JB
	1.11			1174	11.21







Figure 1.87: Distribution of herring gull during the breeding season



		1	2	4	1
on-o		Bla	ckpool		1
J			<1		
	-	1	The	2.00	-
					2
1					
DY		0	Southpo	rt	
	LE	GEND			71
Provent of	-	Tra	nsmissi	on	
1Þ	L	Ass Ord	ets Ons er Limit	shore	
		Est	uarine s	urve	y
11		area	а		
		Ons	shore VI	Ps	
	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	a
7 2		0.1	5 - 0.02	5	
		0.2	5-0.5		
浙		0.7			
10000					
iver					
50000					
and a					
GKC	1				
100					
00					
10					
1915					
XA					
	1				
/					
-					
11					
	-	1		_	
		N	IOREC	AN	IBE
	7	0	cobra ⊘ FL	DTATIONE	NERGY
	-	-Eng	8W 🔘	FP	5
			Figure 1.87		
	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		
1 Car	-	12	693-0285	-03	
usqs.	VER 03	DATE 19/09/24	FINAL	BY AC	JB
					L.





























Figure 1.90: Distribution of common tern during the non-breeding season











Figure 1.91: Distribution of common tern during the breeding season





1.		14	1	-	100
ni=m		Bla	ckpool		1
1		0	1	1	4
	-	X	an	4-	-
1		-			
E.					
		0	Southpo	rt	2
	LE	GEND			
11	-	Tra	nsmissio	on	
Þ	L	Ass Ord	ets Ons ler Limit	shore	÷
N	-	Est	uarine s	urve	v
11	E	area	a		,
	C) Ons	shore VI	S	-
	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	a
1		<0.0	01		
		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
畜	-		25 - 0.03	-	
			75 01	5	
/er		_ 0.01	10 0.1		
1970					
ar lo					
K ⁶					
iss .					
20					
L					
19-12					
1					
*					
11					
	-				
NA		KN	OREC		IRF
	-	10		DTATION E	NERGY
	_	Eng	ຍພ 👸	CP	S
	-	Tarwann	Eigure 1.01	A VETTAL TALM O	arrant
	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		
1		12	693-0285	-03	
sos.	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
	_				











		11		
	Bla	ckpool		
	0			<
	Y	1	the	-
-				7
				20
		-	X	
	0	Southpo	rt	-2-
LE	GEND			-
	Tra	nemieeir	n	
E	Ass	ets Ons	hore	
	Ord	er Limit	S	
	Est	uarine s	urve	v
	area	а		
C	Ons	shore VI	S	
M	ean d	ensity r	ber h	a
	7<00	01		
-		1 - 0 024	5	
-		5 0.020	-	
1	0.02	25 - 0.0	0	
1				1
	IN			IBE
_	Eng	8W 🜔	CP	S
1	James no	Figure 1.92	-	-
Dra	wing Nun	nber:	_	
	12	693-0285	-03	
VED	0475	DET		CUERK
03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
_			_	











正正					2
0		Bla	ckpool		
1		0	5		5
1	-	X	The	-	-
1		-			
5				X	
		0	Southp	ort	-
	LE	GEND	17		
		Tra	nsmiss	ion	
7		Ass	ets Or	shore	9
F		Ord	er Lim	its	
d	C	area	uarine a	surve	y
1/E	C) Ons	shore \	/Ps	
N.	M	ean d	ensity	per h	na
J.			01		
		0.0	1 - 0.02	25	
- 17		0.02	25 - 0.0	05	
1					
19					
22	Ū.				
-					
-					
4					
Isa					
0					
1					
10					
er i					
N OF					
	2				
T					
E.					
	6				
1					
-					
N.	2				
1					
	η,				
1					
S					
Carlo					
		-		~^^	
K	-			FLOTATION	IDE
and the	-	Ent	11	CO	C
1	-	Demos n U	R etto etta artist	A THYDA FICH &	OPPRIT O
Contraction of the		1	Figure 1.9	93	
1	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		
A IL		12	693-028	5-03	
8	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
	33	1009124	TINAL	AC	00
-	-				







Figure 1.94: Distribution of grey heron during the non-breeding season



		1	1	-	1-
ori-o		Bla	ckpool		1
1		41	-	1	1
	-	1	an	200	*
					Z
1					
		o	Southpo	rt	0.1
. ()	LE	GEND			
1		Tra	nsmissio	on	
e Hitery	C	Ass	ets Ons	hore)
		Ord	er Limit	S	
	C	S Est	uarine s	urve	У
	C	Ons	shore VI	De	
.,	M	ean d	ensity r	oer h	a
1		7 <0.0	01		
7		10.0	1 - 0.02	5	
- Fi	-	_ 5.5			
前					
111111					
iver					
51 <u>0</u> 982					
1					
36					
100					
1					
A.					
1-					
1					
AND					
X_{ij}					
K					
ed _					
1					
T					
The					
i					
	-	7			_
		N	IOREC	AN	IBE
	-	0	cobra D FL	OTATION E	NERGY
	-	Eng	3W 🍈	rp	5
15	-	Tarmetter	Figure 1.94	A HITSA TADA O	aurant
	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	_	
lin		12	693-0285-	-03	
200	VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	СНЕСК
usus.	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
					11











	15			
	Bla	ckpool		
		1	. 1	
-	~	There	any	3
				1
		Southpo	rt	
	0	Souripo	are pre-	~
LE	GEND	omieri		
E	Ass	ets Ons	shore	
	Ord	er Limit	S	
C	Est	uarine s	urve	У
C) Ons	shore V	Ps	
M	ean d	ensity	oer h	a
	<0.0	01		
	0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
ł.,				
17				
1				
5				
1				
2				
	4.			inc.
	N	IOREC	CAN	IBE
	Ent		CO	1
	Patresiti	tone workers if	A TETRA FEDE D	-
Dra	wing Nu-	Figure 1.95	5	_
Dra	12	693-0285	-03	
VER	DATE	DETAILS	BY	CHECK
03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB





Figure 1.96: Distribution of little egret during the non-breeding season





泉山		1	1	5	1
0		oBla	ckpool		10
-		Y		In	
1	-	-			7
		0	Southpo	rt	
-	LE	GEND			
10-01	c	Tra	nsmissio ets Ons	on shore	2
		Ord	ler Limit	s	
đ	C	Est area	uarine s a	urve	У
1011	C	Ons	shore VI	D _S	
0	M	ean d	ensity p	ber h	na
à.		_ <0.0	01 1 - 0 024	5	
- 17		0.0	- 0.02:	J	
2 H					
r R					
1					
6					
iss (
P					
11					
1961					
一日の日日					
明ら					
1					
1					
X					
1221			_		
語とく		1 M	OREC	AN	IBE
No.	9	- 0		DTATION E	NERGY
くとう		Eng	3W 🔅	TETRA TECH C	S
			Figure 1.96	5	
1	Dra	wing Nun	nber:	02	
1	VER	12 DATE	093-0285-	BY	CHECK
1	03	19/09/24	FINAL	AC	JB
			11.1.1.1.1.1		11.11











14		1	1 m	- 4	1º
ñ o		Bla	ckpool		
1		-	-	1	
1	F	~	Ann	-	*
\swarrow					81
E			Southpo	rt	
		0		N.	
	LE	GEND	nemieei	00	
0.4		Ass	ets Ons	shore	
		Ord	er Limit	S	
Y d	C	area	uarine s a	urve	У
K		Ons	shore VI	Ps	
	M	ean d	ensity p	oer h	a
A		<0.0	D1		
		0.0	1 - 0.02	5	
留			25 - 0.0	5	
	-	0.0	5 - 0.07:	0	
/er					
100					
ks					
6					
Iss					
-					
1					
31					
	÷.				
10					
-					
/					
-					
	6				
	λ.				
	1				
S					
- Part		-			
Y	-			VIA OTATION E	NERGY
~	_	Eng	sw 🌼	CP	S
	-	Partnes in D	Figure 1 97	A TETRA 1800 C	Datant
10	Dra	wing Nun	nber:		
	1	12	693-0285	-03	
sos	VER 03	DATE	DETAILS	BY	СНЕСК ЈВ
1					







1.4.6 Limitations

- 1.4.6.1 Previous outbreaks of Highly Pathogenic Avian Influenza (HPAI) have tended to hit wintering waterfowl, subsiding as wintering flocks disperse. Over the winter of 2021/22 an outbreak of HPAI was confirmed in barnacle geese wintering on the Solway Firth and from late spring 2022, increasing numbers of reports of the disease were received from seabird colonies around the northern UK (Pearce-Higgins et al., 2022). The extent of impact of HPAI on individual species is assessed through ongoing monitoring.
- 1.4.6.2 As the baseline was characterized during the outbreak, there is potential that the baseline is not representative of a typical year. However, it must be noted that bird populations are subject to natural fluctuations in response to a range of environmental conditions (e.g., weather) and this may cause inter-annual variations in abundance. Collecting bird data over a two-year period is considered sufficient to capture the inter-annual variation and characterise the baseline.
- 1.4.6.3 Due to the technical limitations of using nocturnal equipment (thermal monocular and infra-red camcorders), only the first 500 m of the intertidal at the coastal survey area (from MHWS seaward) could be fully surveyed. Although the thermal imaging equipment could detect birds at a greater distance, accurate counting and identification was not always possible.
- 1.4.6.4 Both periods of strong wind and precipitation, even slight rain, can interfere with nocturnal equipment and therefore nocturnal surveys at the coastal survey area were planned to avoid these weather conditions as far as possible.
- 1.4.6.5 One nocturnal survey was missed due to inclement weather during the 2021 to 2022 winter. This survey was caught up during April 2022, however it is acknowledged that some wintering species may have left on migration at that stage. One nocturnal survey was missed due to inclement weather during the 2022 to 2023 winter.

1.5 Summary

- 1.5.1.1 The purpose of this annex is to present baseline data on waterbirds using the intertidal habitats along the Transmission Assets.
- 1.5.1.2 In order to establish a baseline of ornithological receptors within the coastal and estuarine survey areas, a combination of desk-based study and site-specific surveys have been undertaken between 2021 and 2024.
- 1.5.1.3 The desk-based study focussed on a review of WeBS core count data together with the Fylde Bird Club data and results from bird surveys associated with developments (e.g., Fylde Sand Extraction application and the Fylde Export Cable Route) which overlapped with the coastal and estuarine survey areas.
- 1.5.1.4 The WeBS core count data indicated sanderling to be present in numbers of national importance during the spring and autumn at St. Annes Beach, at landfall. Fylde Bird Club recorded 91 species in the vicinity of the coastal







survey area. Fylde Bird Club also found sanderling to be present in high numbers with a peak count of 2,427.

- 1.5.1.5 The Fylde Export Cable Route bird surveys also reported a high level of activity in nearshore waters with flocks of common scoter exceeding 1,000 individuals. The most abundant species on the intertidal area was sanderling.
- 1.5.1.6 At the River Ribble-Bull Nose-Clifton Marsh, the WeBS core count showed no species in numbers greater than 1% of the GB population.
- 1.5.1.7 Site-specific surveys were undertaken within the coastal survey area to characterise the waterbird baseline usage (i.e., abundance and distribution) of the supratidal, intertidal and subtidal habitats at the landfall. Diurnal and nocturnal surveys used a 'through-the-tidal-cycle' survey methodology. Diurnal surveys were undertaken approximately twice per month, with visits between September 2021 and August 2023. Nocturnal surveys were undertaken over the wintering period only (once per month between November 2021 to March 2022 and November 2022 to March 2023).
- 1.5.1.8 Additionally, diurnal site-specific surveys were undertaken within the estuarine survey area on the intertidal habitats and in the adjacent terrestrial habitats. Diurnal surveys were undertaken twice per month, with reported data collected between October 2022 and March 2024. Surveys have been ongoing until September 2024 with results available post application.
- 1.5.1.9 Both the desk-based study and site-specific surveys show that areas of the coastal survey area is important either nationally or internationally for a number of ornithological waterbird features.
- 1.5.1.10 From the site-specific surveys, there is evidence that the intertidal habitats at the landfall support a wader assemblage which is of importance in the context of the Ribble and Alt Estuaries SPA population. Sanderling were observed to forage or roost in large numbers along the tide line (peak maximum count of 4,702 individuals) and there was a very large influx of dunlin (peak maximum count of 4,200 individuals) in the coastal survey area during passage period. Additionally, intertidal habitats at the landfall supports a small overwintering population of wintering waders, including redshank (70) and turnstone (143).
- 1.5.1.11 The site-specific surveys shows that the estuarine survey area supports numbers of lapwing, wigeon and teal during the non-breeding season which use the intertidal habitats and channels of the Inner Ribble Estuary. The area also supports large numbers of non-breeding naturalised Canada and greylag goose alongside mallard. Smaller numbers of curlew and redshank were regularly recorded with a notable record of a single wintering green sandpiper.
- 1.5.1.12 The breeding common tern from Preston Dock were recorded in low numbers and it is likely that they just use the estuarine survey area for commuting to and from foraging grounds. There was also no evidence of the area being of importance to the SPA and SSSI breeding gull colonies of lesser blackbacked gull and black-headed gull that are situated on the Ribble saltmarsh to the west.







1.5.1.13 An assessment of the potential impact of the Transmission Assets on onshore and intertidal ornithological receptors is presented in Volume 3, Chapter 4: Onshore and intertidal ornithology of the ES.







1.6 References

Armitage, M. J. S., Holloway, S. J., Shaw, P., and Rehfisch, M. M. (2002) Through-thetidal-cycle and night-time waterbird counts as part of the London Gateway Assessment. BTO Research Report No. 283.

Austin, G.E., Calbrade, N.A., Birtles, G.A., Peck, K., Wotton, S.R., Shaw, J.M., Balmer, D.E. and Frost, T.M. (2023) Waterbirds in the UK 2021/22: The Wetland Bird Survey and Goose and Swan Monitoring Programme. BTO, RSPB, JNCC and NatureScot. British Trust for Ornithology, Thetford.

Bibby, C.J., Burgess, N.D., Hill, D.A. and Mustoe, S. (2000) Bird Census Techniques. Second Edition. Academic Press, London.

British Trust for Ornithology. (2023) BTO Species Codes. Standard naming and coding of species and subspecies regularly found in Britain and Ireland (long list). Available at:

Accessed July 2023.

Brookes, F. (2021) Fylde – Sand extraction, Lytham St. Annes 2020/2021 Wintering Bird Report. 19136285/B0. Report commissioned by Fylde Borough Council. Buckinghamshire, Golder Associates (UK) Ltd.

CIEEM. (2022) Guidelines for ecological impact assessment in the UK and Ireland. Terrestrial, Freshwater, Coastal and Marine. Version 1.2. Chartered Institute of Ecology and Environmental Management, Winchester. Available at:

April 2024.

Ellis, P. (2023) Fylde Bird Club Records. Fylde Bird Club. Data provided on request.

Fylde Bird Club 2024.

Goodship, N.M. and Furness, R.W. (2022) Disturbance Distances Review: An updated literature review of disturbance distances of selected bird species. A report from MacArthur Green to NatureScot.

Hinchcliffe, Z. (2022) Fylde Export Cable Route: Coastal and Estuarine Wintering Bird Survey Report – 2021/2022. Avian Ecology Ltd.

Hume, R., Still, R., Swash, R., Harrop. H., Tipling. D., (2016) Britain's Birds: An identification guide to the birds of Britain and Ireland. Princetown University Press

Jenkins, L. (2021) Queensway FCA and Nature Park, Lytham St. Annes, Winter Bird Survey Report 2020/2021. TEP-Warrington, Document ref: 8861.001.

Lancashire County Council. (2024) Access to the Lancashire Biodiversity Action Plan (content of former LBAP website) available at:

https://www.lancashire.gov.uk/lern/services/. Accessed January 2024.

Natural England. (2022) Offshore Wind Marine Environmental Assessments: Best Practice Advice for Evidence and Data Standards. Phase I: Expectations for pre-application baseline data for designated nature conservation and landscape receptors to support offshore wind applications. Details for access available at:

https://naturalengland.blog.gov.uk/2022/04/13/offshore-wind-best-practice-advice-to-facilitate-sustainable-development/





f.

Pearce-Higgins, J.W., Humphreys, E.M., Burton, N.H.K., Atkinson, P.W., Pollock, C., Clewley, G.D., Johnston, D.T., O'Hanlon, N.J., Balmer, D.E., Frost, T.M., Harris, S.J., and Baker, H. (2022) Highly pathogenic avian influenza in wild birds in the United Kingdom in 2022: impacts, planning for future outbreaks, and conservation and research priorities. BTO Research Report 752.

Ramsar Convention. (1971) Convention on Wetlands of International Importance Especially as Waterfowl Habitat. Final text adopted by the International Conference on Wetlands and Waterfowl at Ramsar, Iran, 2 February 1971. Available:

Accessed December 2022.

Ross, C.S., Byrne, A.M., Mahmood, S., Thomas, S., Reid, S., Freath, L., Griffin, L.R., Falchieri, M., Holmes, P., Goldsmith, N. and Shaw, J.M. (2024) Genetic Analysis of H5N1 High-Pathogenicity Avian Influenza Virus following a Mass Mortality Event in Wild Geese on the Solway Firth. *Pathogens*, 13(1), p.83.

Scottish Natural Heritage (NatureScot). (2016) Assessing Connectivity with Special Protection Areas (SPAs), Guidance Document, Version 3. Scottish Natural Heritage. Available:

June 2023.

Seabird Monitoring Programme Online Database, BTO and JNCC https://app.bto.org/seabirds/public/data.jsp. Accessed April 2024.

Stanbury, A., Eaton, M., Aebischer, N., Balmer, D., Brown, A., Douse, A., Lindley, P., McCulloch, N., Noble, D., and Win I. (2021) The status of our bird populations: the fifth Birds of Conservation Concern in the United Kingdom, Channel Islands and Isle of Man and second IUCN Red List assessment of extinction risk for Great Britain. British Birds 114: 723-747.

Species	2021/	2021/22												2022/23										
	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug
Shelduck	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0
Scaup	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0
Eider	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0
Common Scoter	0	0	200	0	226	250	700	0	0	103	248	4,000	800	357	290	505	3,934	950	1,892	30	0	0	63	180
Great Crested Grebe	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	2	2	0	0	0	0	0
Oystercatcher	35	23	105	284	822	413	343	93	66	31	65	110	35	62	500	94	720	1,073	176	136	18	1	47	93
Golden Plover	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Grey Plover	0	0	62	10	49	37	19	118	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	11	0	62	50	0	0	0	0	0
Ringed Plover	9	14	3	12	0	37	31	0	0	0	7	0	33	0	32	2	15	19	0	2	0	0	4	93
Whimbrel	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	6	0	0	0
Curlew	0	0	7	9	2	9	1	2	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Bar-tailed Godwit	0	0	625	71	11	25	6	40	0	0	0	0	27	458	500	4	0	285	250	1	0	0	0	1
Turnstone	0	61	43	118	16	142	96	39	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	143	52	27	0	0	0	0	0
Knot	0	1	113	370	0	0	0	52	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	300	0	33	300	0	0	0	0	0
Sanderling	21	152	800	705	390	4,702	628	2,134	115	0	220	5	800	220	514	417	2,000	2,000	420	450	35	0	9	121
Dunlin	0	7	1,200	250	66	4,200	510	1,031	7	0	3	0	12	20	25	55	77	50	677	120	0	0	0	19
Redshank	0	8	23	37	70	39	51	13	0	0	0	0	0	10	16	31	6	33	24	0	0	0	0	0
Kittiwake	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Black-headed Gull	64	81	260	780	236	877	156	2	0	102	137	141	14	30	550	225	620	247	44	0	0	51	82	32
Mediterranean Gull	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Common Gull	3	170	20	245	438	436	162	1	0	0	29	86	22	14	150	98	750	200	10	0	0	0	1	20

Table 1.15: The monthly peak data for the coastal intertidal survey (including the highest of either the diurnal and nocturnal peaks)





Appendix A

Species	2021/22												2022/23											
	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug
Great Black-backed Gull	17	9	5	3	13	7	11	6	5	7	12	14	8	5	6	23	13	16	9	3	2	8	4	12
Herring Gull	59	90	570	535	227	842	196	118	1,543	430	165	653	720	94	1,600	212	1,500	500	216	812	143	580	460	414
Lesser Black-backed Gul	4	40	2	0	0	14	2	130	295	343	255	353	42	0	2	2	1	15	20	101	30	210	137	90
Sandwich Tern	1	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	84	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	20	0	15	12	427
Little Tern	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Common Tern	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	29	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	4	0	90
Arctic Skua	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	3
Guillemot	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	3	0
Red-throated Diver	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	6	14	10	6	11	1	3	1	4	0	0	0	0
Manx Shearwater	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	77	0
Cormorant	6	1	1	0	1	1	0	2	2	5	0	14	54	12	13	112	7	9	6	22	4	1	15	0
Grey Heron	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Little Egret	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	2	0	0	3	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0

Table 1.16: The monthly peak data for the estuarine intertidal survey.

Species	2022/2	3					2023/24											
	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar
Canada goose	282	58	27	11	82	19	24	0	8	0	248	6	65	13	268	110	30	32
Greylag goose	37	0	68	0	0	0	0	0	0	7	84	0	67	0	13	1	0	0
Mute swan	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0
Whooper swan	0	0	30	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Shelduck	0	1	5	11	2	7	11	5	9	0	0	0	0	0	1	26	66	6
Wigeon	83	94	822	521	196	446	2	0	0	0	0	0	315	465	513	670	280	170
Mallard	44	60	53	42	22	18	10	3	6	0	11	36	22	17	47	88	25	8







Species	2022/23					2023/24												
	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	Мау	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar
Teal	39	108	215	275	43	47	8	0	0	0	5	13	65	40	167	85	34	42
Goldeneye	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Goosander	0	3	1	3	3	5	0	0	1	0	0	2	0	0	9	0	1	6
Oystercatcher	0	0	0	1	54	45	0	1	18	2	6	1	0	0	0	0	4	28
Lapwing	411	85	444	367	111	7	0	2	8	46	230	82	49	75	16	41	44	12
Grey plover	0	2	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Curlew	4	24	2	8	9	2	0	0	0	16	19	1	10	2	2	2	2	2
Black-tailed godwit	0	0	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Dunlin	3	0	65	222	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	46	13	0	0	0	0
Jack snipe	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0
Snipe	13	0	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	21	7	2	0	0	0
Common sandpiper	2	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	1	1	1	0	1	1	1	1
Green sandpiper	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0
Redshank	19	40	24	20	6	12	15	0	1	0	13	10	5	9	19	22	13	14
Greenshank	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Black-headed gull	141	51	250	296	262	16	0	23	17	166	149	57	31	5	41	80	8	38
Common gull	0	0	0	0	8	3	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0
Great black-backed gull	5	1	3	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	5	1	0	4	1	0	2
Herring gull	156	0	13	0	15	12	0	15	55	77	111	83	4	0	17	10	0	1
Lesser black-backed gull	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	32	4	41	2	1	0	0	0	0	1
Common tern	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	4	2	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Cormorant	5	11	5	2	2	0	1	0	1	1	1	2	1	1	5	2	1	1
Cattle egret	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Grey heron	2	4	0	1	1	0	0	0	1	2	3	1	8	0	1	1	0	1







Species	2022/23	2022/23												2023/24							
	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar			
Little Egret	2	2	3	1	2	3	0	3	3	1	1	10	2	1	4	2	3	4			
Sparrowhawk	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
Buzzard	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
Kingfisher	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0			
Peregrine	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
Sand martin	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	33	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			

